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60%
OF AUSTRALIA’S 
POPULATION LIVE IN 
CITIES OF MORE THAN 
ONE MILLION PEOPLE

CHAIRMAN’S 
MESSAGE

this broader situation with low 
population within a very large 
area. LandCorp has had a critical 
role to play in the concerted 
effort from Government and 
the private sector to foster the 
development of infrastructure and 
industry, to promote environmental 
and economic stability and to 
facilitate regional cooperation and 
community building.

A significant investment was made 
by way of the Government’s Pilbara 
Cities plan, launched some five years 
ago, which aims to turn towns like 
Karratha into modern, sustainable 
communities. In the past year, 
Karratha’s previously overheated 
market has normalised and average 
weekly rents have decreased 
from $2,200 to significantly less 
than $1,000.

The Shire of Roebourne, which 
encompasses Karratha, Dampier, 
Roebourne, Point Samson and 

Wickham, was officially declared the 
‘City of Karratha’ in July 2014.

Further north, LandCorp continues 
to play a pivotal role in Broome’s 
future through the supply of land at 
Broome North and Broome Road 
Industrial to cater for the growth in 
population and the tourist industry, 
as well as potential increased 
demand from the resources industry 
over the next 20 or more years.

Western Australia is ideally positioned 
to capitalise on Asia’s demand for 
natural resources: iron ore, minerals, 
gas and agricultural products. 

With more than 60 per cent of 
Australian’s population living in 
cities of more than one million 
people, the critical mass of 
metropolitan centres are driving 
a large part of our development 
agenda. A continual emphasis 
is being placed on strategies to 
manage the consequences of 
growth in metropolitan Perth for 
future generations. 

This involves addressing housing 
affordability, transport, sustainable 
environments and infrastructure.

However, beyond our metropolitan 
centres, different issues are at 
stake. Historically, smaller cities 
and towns lacked the density or 
intensity of population to provide 
diverse services and facilities to 
retain or attract residents, but they 
do provide other opportunities 
that can act as catalysts for 
future development.

Large parts of regional Western 
Australia are emblematic of 
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Karratha

Realising the 
potential of land 
and infrastructure in 
Western Australia.



And while slower compared to 
previous years, China’s forecast 
growth outlook at around seven per 
cent is still compelling.

There is still more than A$130 billion 
worth of projects (iron and steel, oil 
and gas and other resources) either 
committed or under consideration 
for the state during the next few 
years. These projects are forecast 
to create more than 35,000 
construction jobs and more than 
10,000 permanent jobs and will 
continue to drive industrial land 
demand and development in WA 
for decades to come.

We also anticipate increased 
investment in Western Australia’s 
agricultural sector and the potential 
rise in agri-exports including wood 
/paper pulp and food products to 
meet Asia’s growing demand for 
paper and food security.

Looking to some other key trends, it 
is interesting to note that industrial 
land demand is not unaffected by 
the rise in digital technology. The 
growth in online shopping is widely 
expected to underpin demand for 

third party logistics providers and 
warehousing.

As our population grows, we are 
realising the potential of land 
and infrastructure developments 
across the State by creating places 
for people to live socialise and 
work. Our land delivery program 
is helping secure our economic 
and social prosperity. According 
to The Housing We’d Choose 
study (May 2013) the ownership 
dream for Perth and Peel residents 
remains strong - with 98 per cent 
of residents preferring owner 
occupation and only two per cent 
preferring to rent. 

Providing affordable and diverse 
housing options for all groups 
across WA remains a key focus. As 
the State’s population continues 
to grow reducing ‘housing stress’, 
as described in The Real Costs 
of Housing in Western Australia 
report (April 2014, Bankwest Curtin 
Economics Unit), is key.

In the past year, finding unique 
ways to deliver affordable housing 
options has seen us revisit past 
designs and look to the future for 
design inspiration. At Mandurah 
Junction the past inspired the 
successful reintroduction of a 
maisonette design, while the recent 
Gen Y Demonstration House 
competition saw young designers 
submit an ‘idea’ to encapsulate 
the Gen Y lifestyle and living 
requirements. The result is a flexible, 
cost-effective and sustainable 
dwelling for the next generation of 
home owners. 

Karratha has come a long way and I am proud of the role 
LandCorp has played in this amazing transformation.  
Further improvements are scheduled over the next few years 
to ensure the new City of the North continues to prosper.

CHAIRMAN’S 
MESSAGE

The creation of major activity 
centres – Cockburn Central, 
Mandurah Junction, Claremont on 
the Park – are also critical in meeting 
the predicted housing demand 
while optimising the use of existing 
transport links, major infrastructure 
and services. Getting the planning 
right is vital and the expansion 
of metropolitan and regional 
centres is also helping change 
the employment and activity 
dynamics by creating real growth 
opportunities. As Western Australia 
continues to grow, LandCorp 
continues to embrace new and 
innovative land and infrastructure 
strategies to ensure our State 
realises its development potential.

This requires a new approach to 
development and delivery and this 
is reflected in our five year Strategic 
Development Plan. In addition, and 
consistent with the 2015-16 State  
Budget program of fiscal repair 
announced in May 2015, LandCorp 
is reviewing specific undeveloped 
land holdings.  Should the orderly 
divestment of particular holdings  
be considered to be the optimal 
result for government, the Board 
will consider these sales in the 
coming months.

In closing out the 2014-15 year, 
I would like to thank my fellow 
directors and our CEO Frank Marra 
and his executive group who, along 
with all the team at LandCorp make 
a very significant contribution to the 
development of Western Australia

MONTY HOUSE 
CHAIRMAN

35,000
CONSTRUCTION JOBS

$130 BILLION

WORTH OF PROJECTS
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27,000
PEOPLE CALL  
KARRATHA HOME

3.5 MILLION
PEOPLE IN 2061

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 
MESSAGE

for a time when we’ll live in a city 
the size of Sydney because by 2061 
Perth’s population is forecast to 
have increased by more than 3.5 
million people.

For most of 2014-15 interest rates 
held firm, providing the longest 
period of stability since the mid-
1990s. This level of stability augers 
well for first homebuyers who have 
more choice than ever in the housing 
they choose - from apartments or 
multi-generational homes in inner 
city locations, to house and land 
packages in traditional estates.

And while the economy has cooled 
on the back of the resource sector 
moving from construction to 
production, signs in the housing 
construction sector remain 
encouraging. For example, the 
number of housing starts recorded 
in 2014 has set a new record 

and demonstrates strength and 
confidence in the market. The 
Urban Development Institute of 
Australia recently reported housing 
finance commitments rose 4.5 per 
cent [in 2014], with finance for the 
construction of new dwellings up 4.1 
per cent, and up 5.2 per cent for the 
purchase of established dwellings 
over this period.  

Western Australia is in good 
shape. Our population continues 
to increase and while it’s unlikely 
we will see the massive influx 
experienced over the past couple 
of years, we remain a State on the 
move, with a growth rate not seen 
since the early 1970s. 

LandCorp will continue to capitalise 
on existing infrastructure in areas 
of concentrated business activity to 
stimulate the market and support 
population growth. It is important to 
establish strong connection between 

Almost 30 years on, more than 
two million people live in Perth. 
Joondalup is now a vibrant, thriving 
city and more than 27,000 people 
call the city of Karratha home.

As the State Government’s land 
development agency, we have 
played a critical role in planning for 
the growth of our suburbs, our city 
and our state. Today, we’re planning 

In the late 1970s, Perth 
had a population 
of 833,000 people. 
Karratha was a newly 
established town and 
not a single house had 
been built in the new 
suburb of Joondalup.
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Breathing new life into suburban Perth remains a 
key focus and we expect demand to continue for 
land in suburbs which offer a new product within an 
established community.

2015 will see works commencing 
activity at the former Camberwarra 
Primary school Site in Craigie which 
is close to major transport routes 
including Marmion Avenue and 
Mitchell Freeway, and local amenity 
such as Hillarys Marina, local parks 
and schools. It is 200 metres from 
the former Craigie High School 
development, now known as ‘The 
Vive’. Together, these developments 
will make a positive contribution to 
the area by offering a diverse range 
of housing types and attractive 
public open spaces.

Blackmore Park Estate in Girrawheen 
is another northern suburb 
development which is close to major 
transport routes, shops and schools 
and will offer diverse affordable 
housing types which aim to optimise 
water and energy efficiencies 
through innovative design and 
construction techniques. 

In the southern metropolitan 
corridor, White Gum Valley – the 
former Kim Beazley School site 
– will deliver a new residential 
estate featuring a range of housing 
styles and living options including 
apartments, maisonettes and 
single home sites. It will also 
feature the winning design of the 

Gen Y demonstration housing 
competition.  Launched in [June] 
this year, White Gum Valley is 
planned to demonstrate innovation 
in sustainable urban design.

In the southern coastal corridor, 
Seabreeze in Waikiki will offer 
a relaxed coastal lifestyle while 
maintaining easy access to the 
wide range of amenities nearby. 
The Warnbro train station and Ennis 
Avenue are 1 kilometre away and 
the local bus networks are literally 
on the estate’s doorstep. Cycle 
pathways also link the residential 
estate to the surrounding area.

In addition, we are working on 
opportunities to facilitate private 
sector development at the Cockburn 
Coast Redevelopment Area, 
Mandurah Junction, Shenton Park, 
Claremont and Jolimont.

centres of employment and housing 
and this alignment is increasingly 
being seen in areas like Alkimos, 
and Eglinton where the feeder 
employment area of Neerabup will 
motivate homebuyers looking to live 
close to their place of work.

In the four years since the 
Government’s State Planning Policy 
was released, we have embraced 
the need to limit the expansion of 
our urban fringe through a range of 
ambitious density and urban infill 
projects on underutilised parcels of 
land such as Perry Lakes, Springs 
Rivervale and Claremont on the Park.

Cockburn Central is also delivering 
on its promise to become a well-
connected, walkable community, 
offering the convenience of inner-
city living to those in Perth’s rapidly 
expanding southern corridor by 
providing real choices in high-
density residential dwelling, with 
recreation, retail and commercial 
opportunities integrated with major 
public transport facilities. 

Breathing new life into suburban 
Perth remains a key focus and 
we expect demand to continue 
for land in suburbs which offer a 
new product within an established 
community.

Artist impression - WGV



MILESTONE ACHIEVEMENTS
Many milestones define our past 
12 months. Cabinet approved the 
Regional Centres Development Plan 
and gave conditional approval to the 
Mangles Bay Business Plan, a $250 
million transformation project for 
Rockingham. Broome Road Industrial 
estate was launched with its first 
sales following soon after. The town 
of Onslow also confirmed its support 
for an infrastructure upgrade and 
development program.

In line with a mandate to successfully 
deliver on the Government’s asset 
disposal program, we released the 
first draft master plan to redevelop 
the Shenton Park Hospital site. The 
sale of Kaleeya Hospital site was 
settled, netting the State $17.5 million 
thanks to our joint efforts with 
Departments of Health and Lands.

After years of community 
speculation surrounding a parcel of 
privately owned land at Middleton 
Beach in Albany, which has 
remained vacant for many years, we 
successfully negotiated the purchase 
of the site which was finalised prior 
to Christmas.

The completion of a number of 
long term projects was cause for 
celebration.  On the residential front, 
Evermore Heights in Baldivis and 

Harvest Lakes in Atwell reached 
a successful conclusion.  These 
exciting developments were closed 
out with a project review so new 
project activity can benefits from 
lessons learnt.

Similarly, we wrapped up Enterprise 
Park, a 26-year investment which 
is now home to 250 businesses 
and has generated more than 
10,000 jobs.  According to research 
by Curtin University, our $213 
million infrastructure investment 
has generated a total economic 
contribution of more than $37 
billion. The estate has supported 
strong population growth in the 
northern suburbs of Perth and is a 
great example of how we optimise 
the return on Government property 
assets and add value through 
our work.

We also released the final site 
at Rockingham Waterfront 
Village, land which provides a 
rare opportunity for developers 
to share in this successful urban 
renewal project just 200 metres 
from Rockingham Beach.  And 
10 years after its initial launch, 
the final eight residential lots in 
Karrinyup’s prestigious Ocean Rise 
estate were released for sale, as 
was the final stage of Minim Cove in 
Mosman Park.

Underpinning our ongoing infill and 
traditional housing work in regional 
and metropolitan Western Australia 
is our commitment to lead industry 
innovation by demonstrating new 
and more efficient energy, design 
and community development 
initiatives. 

FIT FOR THE FUTURE – AN 
INTERNAL REFORM AGENDA

After significant engagement 
with staff, the executive team 
and our board of directors, we 
have developed a strategy to 
ensure we are ‘Fit for the Future’. 
Its aim is to positively position 
future development, focussing on 
maintaining the health and direction 
of the business.  Our performance 
will be defined by our ability to 
deliver on four key result areas:

• Integrated project delivery

• Relationships and Partnerships

• Corporate and Commercial 
Sustainability

• Market Leadership and Innovation

To support performance in these 
areas, we have restructured the 
business to better align with 
operational functions.

This work has shaped our 
Statement of Corporate Intent and 
Strategic Development Plan which 
in turn, guides development of our 
business plans.

EXECUTIVE MOVEMENTS 

In July 2014 we welcomed Ms 
Fiona Barclay to the position of 
chief financial officer (CFO) and 
executive general manager of 
finance and strategy. Fiona brings 
20 years’ combined Australian and 
international financial experience 
obtained through senior leadership 
roles in project management, 
organisational structural design 
and policy development to the 
executive team.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 
MESSAGE

We will continue to maximise 
existing infrastructure.
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At the close of the 2014-15we 
farewelled chief operating officer 
Nicholas Wolff who left to return 
to Sydney. We wish Nick well in 
his relocation.

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 

Our inaugural sustainability 
report to the latest Global 
Reporting Initiative standards 
was endorsed by the Board and 
launched in November 2014. This 
comprehensive report represents 
a major commitment by the many 
involved in its delivery. And while 
we have always demonstrated 
an organisational commitment to 
sustainable development, we are 
now on a journey which will render 

our performance accountable and 
measurable.

SAFETY MONTH

In October 2014, our OS&H team 
led an all-staff workplace safety 
campaign in collaboration with 
Western Australia’s WorkSafe 
Commissioner. 

In support of this important 
initiative, we joined thousands 
of workplaces across Australia 
who took part in Safety Month 
to improve workplace health, 
safety and wellbeing.  We ran and 
promoted a series of presentations, 
training opportunities and events 
focused around safety, health and 
wellbeing during October. 

At our September staff briefing, the 
Commissioner for WorkSafe WA, Mr 
Lex McCulloch, officially presented 
LandCorp with a Silver Certificate 
of Achievement, the highest level 
an organisation can achieve when 

undertaking its first Worksafe Plan 
Assessment.  We are one of only 
12 Government organisations to 
receive Worksafe Accreditation 
over the past five years. The Silver 
certification is valid for two years, 
and we will work towards elevating 
our certification to Gold Worksafe 
Accreditation in late 2015.

On reflection, 2014-15 will go down 
as one of high level productivity and 
achievement. With the support of 
the LandCorp Board, Management 
and a 200-strong success-focussed 
team, we look forward to more of 
the same in 2015-16.

In closing, I would like to thank our 
Minister, the hon Terry Redman 
MLA, the LandCorp Board of 
Directors and my executive team for 
another rewarding year.

FRANK MARRA 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 
MESSAGE

On reflection, 2014-15 will go down as one 
of high level productivity and achievement.
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Carol Morris, Worksafe Commissioner Lex McCullough, LandCorp chief executive Frank Marra



Focusing on sustainable development across the State, 

we are realising the potential of land and infrastructure 

development for all Western Australians.

CORPORATE
SNAPSHOT

CORPORATE SNAPSHOT  |  9



CORPORATE SNAPSHOT  |  10

Ensuring the 
community’s 
economic, 
social and 
environmental 
needs and 
expectations 
are met

Ensuring the 
best outcomes 
and returns are 
achieved from 
Government 
land holdings

Facilitating 
private sector 
investment in 
the State

Ensuring 
adequate 
land supply 
through 
land readiness

Addressing 
market failure

Leading the 
demonstration 
of innovation 
in land and 
housing 
development

Our work supports the six principle 
Government land development roles: 

We have a mandate to deliver all six principle 

roles for Government and also return a 

dividend for reinvestment. 

We contribute positively to the net operating balance.

Broome North development



With more than 150 active projects across the 

State, our portfolio of projects include some  

which generate high returns and help pre-fund 

projects where returns are marginal or require 

significant investment before a positive cash flow 

is generated.

Experienced, multi-disciplinary teams are 

involved in each stage of a project, from initial 

identification of land needs, through to planning, 

construction and marketing. The diverse skill sets 

of our staff and our project team approach means 

we have the flexibility to fulfil a range of roles and 

are able to tailor our resources to meet individual 

needs. These roles range from consultancy to 

project management, full equity involvement and 

development partners.

In line with the West Australian 

Land Authority (WALA) Act we 

are charged with:

Financial flexibility through a ‘portfolio 
approach’ is critical to our ability to be 
responsive without drawing on State 
Government finances.
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150
ACTIVE PROJECTS ACROSS THE STATE

The provision and 
development of industrial, 
commercial, residential and 
other land in a range of 
localities to meet the social 
and economic needs of the 
state, while taking account 
of environmental outcomes;

The completion of the Joondalup 
Centre project;

The facilitation and optimisation of 
the development and disposal 
of surplus public land.

The identification and 
development, or urban renewal, 
of centres of population and 
the provision or improvement 
of land for those centres; and



ECONOMIC

In addition to delivering positive 
community outcomes through 
project delivery, as a Government 
Trading Enterprise we also 
contribute to the State Government 
finances. $0.70 cents in the dollar 
of our net income is returned to the 
State in dividends, rates and taxes 
which revenue is in turn used to 
fund other Government initiatives 
and services.

Through our portfolio of  
projects we are realising the 
potential of economic and 
employment opportunities  
across Western Australia. 

ENVIRONMENTAL

We understand the need to be 
accountable to future generations 
and enviro-sustainability is central 
to all of our work. By optimising the 
potential of innovation and investing 
in demonstration projects, we are 
changing the way we design and 
build, and the way we live. 

Sustainability targets are built 
into our business to minimise our 
ecological impact and enhance 
communities’ quality of life. 
Sustainability goals are achieved 
by working with industry and 
communities - using shared 
knowledge and education. Access 
to cost effective, climate sensitive, 
affordable housing remains a vital 
pillar for our delivery program.

SOCIAL

We understand 

the long-term 

value in creating 

innovative, integrated 

and connected 

communities. 

Creating places where people 
want to live and socialise; places 
which are linked to public transport 
and are inclusive and affordable; 
places which make the best use of 
existing infrastructure and places 
where people work in or near the 
communities in which they live.

Across metropolitan Perth and 
in the regions we are investing in 
major activity, renewal and infill 
developments designed to maximise 
existing public transport networks 
and established infrastructure such 
as schools and hospitals. 

We are responsible to the Minister for Regional 

Developments; Lands, who also has responsibility 

for Department of Lands, Department of Regional 

Development and Landgate. 

We adopt a long-term and integrated approach to  
strategic planning and development to ensure we achieve  
strong social, environmental and financial returns. 

Our commitment to sustainability, innovation and  
partnerships underpins our triple bottom line approach to 
development as we recognise the benefit of much of what we  
do goes beyond financial returns.
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BUSINESS
SNAPSHOT
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We believe in leading by doing. We take the risks 

and make the investments in change technologies 

to encourage industry to adopt sustainable and 

innovative practices. 



GOVERNMENT

Working with other Government 
agencies, we are helping to realise 
the potential of under-utilised  
State-owned assets for the benefit 
of all Western Australians. We 
undertake complex developments 
across the city and throughout the 
state to deliver on the Government’s 
planning policy priorities.

We understand the benefits of 
creating a more connected and 
vibrant city and are actively involved 
in State Government initiatives to 
provide affordable housing, address 
urban growth needs and protect 
our natural ecosystems. By helping 
to create Activity Centres we are 
building places to shop, explore and 
belong. Activity Centres and urban 
infill developments are delivering 
connected communities which 
utilise existing transport, amenities 
and infrastructure. 

Our services also 

include property and 

project management 

and the remediation of 

contaminated sites.

PEOPLE AND PROCESSES

We adopt an integrated approach 
to land and infrastructure 
development in Western Australia. 
Our multi-disciplinary team of 
skilled professionals bring a broad 
range of experience and expertise 
to the table. This culture extends 
to the collaborative approach we 
adopt with our partners to share 
skill sets and expertise. This ensures 
we are able to take a long-term 
approach to development and 
positively shaping our State’s future.

We acknowledge the Traditional 
Owners of this country and 
respect the diversity of its first 
peoples. Since 2008 we have 
worked towards improving our 
reconciliation initiatives. Our 
commitment to reconciliation with 
Aboriginal and non-Aboriginal 
people is demonstrated through our 
State-wide project activity and our 
annual Reconciliation Action Plan.

We lead by example in encouraging 
Western Australia’s development 
industry to embrace training 
and sustainable employment 
opportunities for Aboriginal and 
Torres Strait Islander peoples.
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PARTNERING

We share expertise 

and work across all 

tiers of government, 

business, industry 

associations and 

regional development 

commissions to deliver 

long-term, sustainable 

communities.

Partnerships enable us to share best 
practice and work collaboratively 
with commercial developers.

Cockburn Coast 
Artist impression for illustrative purposes
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SUSTAINABILITY

We take a long-term approach 
to maintaining and improving 
the quality of life enjoyed by 
Western Australians and believe 
sustainability is about delivering 
excellence in sustainable 
development. Adopting the Global 
Reporting Initiative Sustainability 
Reporting Guidelines is testament 
to our commitment to deliver 
genuine sustainability outcomes.

The GRI framework allows us to 
effectively measure our results and 
entrench sustainable values and 
approaches in our culture and our 
business processes. This transparent 
approach to sustainability will see us 
publish an annual report measuring 
tangible outcomes.

Meeting the existing 

needs of our State 

and local communities 

must be achieved 

without compromising 

the needs of future 

generations.

COMMUNITY CONSULTATION

We are committed 

to carrying out 

community 

consultation to  

ensure our projects 

meet the needs of  

the people who will 

live or work there. 

We actively engage with residents, 
businesses and land owners to 
better understand and respond 
to community expectations 
and aspirations.

We believe in leading 

by doing. 

We take the risks and make 
the investments in change 
technologies to encourage 
industry to adopt sustainable 
and innovative practices. 

Our ‘Innovation through 
Demonstration’ projects use 
architectural design, water recycling 
and sustainable energy initiatives 
to create more environmentally 
friendly homes. Some of our 
demonstration projects include 
the Cool Earth Project, the Gen Y 
Demonstration House in White Gum 
Valley and the Pilbara Vernacular, a 
handbook developed to help shape 
the design of housing in the Pilbara.

Cockburn Coast 
Artist impression for illustrative purposes

Cool Earth Project 
Artist impression for illustrative purposes
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MINISTER FOR 
REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT; 

LANDS

LANDCORP BOARD
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

Frank Marra

CHIEF OPERATIONS 
OFFICER
Nick Wolff  

(Departed 2015)

EXECUTIVE GENERAL 
MANAGER BUSINESS 

DEVELOPMENT 
AND MARKETING

Kerry Fijac

CHIEF FINANCIAL  
OFFICER/EXECUTIVE 
GENERAL MANAGER 

FINANCE AND STRATEGY
Fiona Barclay

GENERAL 
MANAGER 
REGIONAL

Stuart Nahajski

STRATEGIC 
ADVISOR 

OPERATIONS
Mike Moloney

GENERAL 
MANAGER 

METROPOLITAN 
Luke Willcock

GENERAL 
MANAGER 

INDUSTRIAL 
John Hackett

ORGANISATIONAL
STRUCTURE
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Key Performance Indicators are set 
as part of the Strategic Planning 
process, which usually occurs in 
December, some seven months 
prior to the beginning of a financial 
year. These targets are then 
reviewed as part of the Mid-Year 
Review process in October, three 
months into the financial year.

Due to rapidly changing economic 
environment in the past 18 

months, targets for the 2014-15 
Strategic Development Plan, from 
December 2013, were set with a 
very different economic outlook 
for the State economy. The Mid-
Year Review targets, set in October 
2014, are more reflective of the 
current economic situation and the 
property market trends. As a result, 
our performance is better measured 
against Mid-Year Review targets.

LandCorp
Strategy

2014-15 Target
(Dec 2013)

Mid-Year
Review

(Oct 2014)

Full Year
Results

(June 2015)

LandCorp Key Performance Indicators -
Targets and Measures

Strategic 
land delivery 
partnerships & 
relationships

1,350

900

440/61

54

1,400

382

152/64

53

1,480

397

174/29

58

Metropolitan: Total dwelling unit equivalents 
created (based on land released)

Regional: Total dwelling unit equivalents 
created (based on land released)

Regional: Total Regional Development 
Assistance Program dwelling unit equivalents 
created / Local Regional Development 
Assistance Program lots created

Industrial: Number of general industrial lots 
released

Government 
priorities 
community 
development

100% 93% 92%Number of priority projects where 
milestone targets were achieved

Business 
performance 
customers & 
marketing

$71m

$76m

>80%

$536m

$93m

$50m

>80%

$389m

$94m

$45m

91%

$343m

Net debt ($M)

Profit ($M)

Staff retention (%)

Sales achieved: (lots settled sales value $M)

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS SUMMARY



OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS  |  18

With more than 150 active projects and many more 

in the pipeline, 2014-15 has been a watershed year. 

Many projects have been realised and a range of 

new, exciting initiatives are taking shape.

OPERATIONAL 
HIGHLIGHTS

LandCorp Chief Executive Frank Marra, City of Wanneroo Deputy Mayor Dot Newton 
and the Honourable Minister Terry Redman celebrate the impact of Enterprise Park



SHORELINE AT 
COCKBURN COAST

The Cockburn Coast Redevelopment 
Area is an ambitious and visionary 
project, set to transform 106 
hectares of former industrial land 
into a thriving coastal community. 

This $4.9 billion project will 
generate more than 12,000 jobs 
during its 20 year development life, 
including - 9,000 construction jobs 
and 3,000 long-term local jobs. 

It will feature medium and higher 
density housing options including 
apartments and townhouses and 
will ultimately be home to more  
than 12,000 people.

Shoreline, the first of the project’s 
three developments precincts, was 
launched in April. It will be home to 
5,000 people who will have access 
to landscaped public open spaces, 
commercial and retail opportunities, 
entertainment and hospitality 
centres and a new school. 

12,000
JOBS

$4.9 BILLION

PROJECT

9,000
CONSTRUCTION JOBS

3,000
LONG-TERM LOCAL JOBS
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Ocean Keys District Centre

Shoreline at Cockburn Coast
Artist impression for illustrative purposes

OCEAN KEYS FINAL RELEASE

July saw the release 

of the final land parcel 

in the Ocean Keys 

District Centre, 15 years 

after it started with the 

Clarkson centrepiece.

Ocean Keys has proven it is a location 
of choice for residents and businesses 
alike with continued growth in the 
area since development began.

It has become a hub of activity in 
Perth’s northern corridor, servicing 
an estimated population of over 
9,000 people with an estimated 
2,400 jobs generated.

The 49 hectare development 
incorporates the latest in 
community focused planning 
including a main shopping  
precinct which has attracted 
retailers such as Bunnings, Coles 
Myer, Woolworths and speciality 
stores, plus amenities such as a 
purpose built youth centre and 
library, tavern, cafes, restaurants 
and parklands. 



MANGLES BAY

With Rockingham’s population 
and the number of metropolitan 
boat owners in Western Australia 
predicted to double by 2031, 
Mangles Bay Marina will provide 
much needed infrastructure to help 
meet the demands of this growth. 

Improved environmental outcomes 
will also be achieved as a result of 
the project with the rehabilitation 
of 20ha of native vegetation in the 
Rockingham Lakes Regional Park. 
The natural environment adjacent 
to the development will also be 
rehabilitated to provide an improved 
habitat for several native species 
and a large area of seagrass (double 
the size of the area affected by the 
entrance and access channel),  
will be replanted. 

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS  |  20

EVERMORE HEIGHTS BALDIVIS

Seven years ago, the first of 
480 home lots were released 
at Evermore Heights in Baldivis, 
in a partnership arrangement 
with Satterley. Today, this  
master-planned community is 
completely sold out and home 
to around 1,500 residents. 

Since land in the 33 hectare 
development was first released in 
2007, Evermore Heights has been 
in strong demand, particularly 
with first home buyers who make 
up 54 per cent of the estate. 
Baldivis is an ideal suburb for 
families with a number of schools, 
shops and medical facilities which 
have contributed to the growth 
of this area.

Evermore Heights was also one 
of the first estates in Australia 
to have all homes fitted with 
photovoltaic (PV) energy cells. 

This was part of the $11,000 
Clever Build bonus that every 
buyer received to provide 
landscaping, fencing and 
1.5kW PV cells.

Homes in the estate produce 
their own electricity without 
emitting greenhouse gases, they 
don’t require fossil fuel resources 
and they are designed to reduce 
household pollution. As an end 
result, Evermore Heights has 
achieved a 36 percent reduction 
in greenhouse gases as well as a 
one-third cut in power bills.

480
HOME LOTS RELEASED

1,500
RESIDENTS
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ACTIVITY CENTRE 
DEVELOPMENT

As part of our metropolitan 
program we are developing or 
facilitating the development of 
Government priority projects in 
activity centres and corridors to 
supplement metropolitan land 
supply with a mix of urban infill and 
traditional development. Growth 
of the metropolitan area is being 
planned in a way that will cater 
for choice and diversity without 
compromising quality of life. 

Work on activity centres aims 
to intensify development at key 
transport nodes. The program is 
designed to address congestion 
and limit the expansion of our 
urban fringe, deliver new centres 
of employment and create urban 
lifestyles and housing choices. 

COCKBURN CENTRAL WEST

The Cockburn Central 

West site provides a 

unique opportunity to 

build on the success 

of the Cockburn 

Central Town Centre 

development. 

Located 19 kilometres south of 
Perth and situated within an 800 
metre walkable catchment of the 
Cockburn Central train station, this 
site will be critical to supporting the 
long term viability of the existing 
urban development. 

A $100 million plus facility will 
incorporate the City of Cockburn’s 
Aquatic and Recreation Centre 
and the Fremantle Football Club’s 
training and administration facility.

Aquatic Centre at Cockburn Central West
Artist impression for illustrative purposes

$100M
PLUS FACILITY

WITHIN

800
METRES OF COCKBURN 
CENTRAL TRAIN STATION
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ALKIMOS MASTERPLANNED COMMUNITY 

The 710 hectare master-
planned community in Alkimos 
is the most significant coastal 
development north of Perth in 
50 years with potential for more 
than 15,000 residents in 5,900 
dwellings, including an activity 
centre that is forecast to provide 
up to 13,500 new employment 
opportunities built around a 
major transit hub. 

Alkimos Beach spans the first  
240 hectares of the 710 hectare 
master-planned community and  
is being developed in partnership 
with LendLease with a range of 
community facilities including a 
surf lifesaving club connected with 
a regional beach. 

The progressive yet affordable 
development is about protecting 
the superb natural environment, 
creating a more sustainable 
community moving towards 
carbon-neutral living. 

In March this year Alkimos Beach 
was awarded Australia’s first 6 Star 
Green Star – Communities rating 
for a residential master-planned 
project from the Green Building 
Council of Australia (GBCA). 
The first lots were successfully 
launched in January 2013 with 
sales maintained at around 20 lots 
per month. The Alkimos Beach 
development will be aiming to 
release 250 lots in 2015-16.

13,500
NEW EMPLOYMENT

15,000
RESIDENTS

710
HECTARE COMMUNITY

Alkimos masterplanned community
Artist impression for illustrative purposes
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Complementing the activity centre at 
Alkimos, the project will support the  
fast-growing population in the  
north-west corridor of the metropolitan 
area and the City of Wanneroo by 
stimulating activity for existing local 
businesses and service providers, 
resulting in additional options for 
residents to work and live within 
the Alkimos-Eglinton area. 

The new masterplanned community 
will include a range of home sites to 
cater to all lifestyles and life stages, 
with beautifully designed and 
landscaped parks and public open 
spaces, walk and cycle ways to 
encourage active outdoor living.

We have partnered with Satterley 
Property Group to deliver the 
community over the next decade. 

The Alkimos – Eglinton area 
will ultimately be home to more than 
55,000 people and will deliver on the 
government agenda to provide an 
adequate supply of affordable living 
opportunities in the metropolitan area.

ALLARA: PERTH’S NEWEST COASTAL COMMUNITY

Perth’s newest coastal community  

will face the sun and feature innovative, 

energy-saving design guidelines to 

create a sustainable and affordable 

residential community.

Allara, an Aboriginal word meaning daylight, is a 240 hectare 
development just north of Alkimos and the Butler Train 
Station with the potential to deliver 3,400 new home sites for 
a future population of up to 7,500 people.

The new community is designed to embrace the natural 
environment and promote affordable and sustainable living. 
Underlining this philosophy is Allara’s road layout which 
will allow for the orientation of housing lots to maximise 
the potential for solar power and energy efficiency in 
building design.

3,400
NEW HOME SITES

7,500
PEOPLE



CLAREMONT ON THE PARK

More than 700 new homes will be built 

around Claremont Oval at Claremont on 

the Park which will be a well-connected 

and walkable community with a lively mix 

of residential, commercial and recreational 

spaces close to public transport.

Homes for more than 350 people at Claremont on the Park will be 
built after national property group Mirvac was named the preferred 
proponent for two apartment sites.

The apartment buildings will provide a minimum of 178 new apartments 
in a sought after location, within walking distance of Claremont’s town 
centre and railway station. It will have views of Claremont Oval at the 
heart of the precinct.

Claremont on the Park is one 
of a number of urban renewal 
projects we are delivering to 
help address Western Australia’s 
growing demand for more 
diverse housing by rejuvenating 
underutilised areas within 
established suburbs.

The development will ultimately 
provide more than 700 new homes 
for more than 1,000 people. 
The majority of future residents 
will come from the area, looking 
to move out of home, stop renting 
or downsize. 

We will continue to develop 
communities, such as Claremont 
on the Park, around centres of 
activity and transport corridors to 
support population growth and 
help address urban expansion 
in Metropolitan Perth.
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Claremont on the Park 
Artist impression for illustrative purposes



STATE-WIDE  
INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT  
AGENDA

An ongoing focus is the planning, design and development of 
strategically located land to support Western Australia’s future 
employment and economic growth needs. This includes the 
development of land for small and large businesses and land for 
commercial, light and heavy industrial purposes. 

We also provide asset and facilities management at the 
Australian Marine Complex (AMC), and assist major 
projects by working closely with the Department of State 
Development to create suitable strategic industrial areas 
(SIA’s) for oil and gas production and downstream processing.

We work closely with the 
Department of State Development 
and the Department of Commerce 
to progress Government policies to 
ensure the availability of adequate 
employment land around Perth and 
regional Western Australia for the 
next 20 years and beyond. 
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WESTERN TRADE COAST

Located on Cockburn Sound to 
the south of Perth, the Western 
Trade Coast has been designed as 
Australia’s industrial land gateway to 
global industry and trade with the 
powerhouse economies of China 
and South East Asia.

Some of Western Australia’s 
major established industrial assets 
have been strategically clustered 
together including:

• Rockingham Industry Zone 

• Australian Marine Complex 

• Latitude 32 Industry Zone 

• Kwinana Strategic Industrial Area

The Western Trade Coast is an 
initiative between the Departments 
of State Development, Environment 
and Conservation, Commerce, 
Planning, and Transport as well 
as Fremantle Ports, the Kwinana 
Industries Council, City of Cockburn, 
Town of Kwinana, industry 
representatives and LandCorp.

Latitude 32 Industry Zone 
The 1,400 hectare Latitude 
32 Industry Zone is located 
25 kilometres south of Perth. 
Latitude 32 will ultimately generate 
approximately 20,000 jobs and 
inject $7.6 billion into the Western 
Australian economy over the 
next 30 years. 

In 2014-15, planning for the delivery 
of key land and infrastructure to 
support private investment and 
industry in the Western Trade Coast 
continued. We are working with key 
stakeholders to ensure the Western 
Trade Coast realises its economic 
potential by making land available 
for a range of industries. 

As well as Latitude 32 Industry 
Zone, land is being made available 
at Kwinana and Rockingham.

AMC

LATITUDE 32  
INDUSTRY ZONE

KWINANA  
INDUSTRIAL 
AREA

ROCKINGHAM  
INDUSTRIAL 
ZONE
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Strategic Industrial Areas
Led by the Department of State 
Development and delivered by 
LandCorp, Strategic Industrial 
Areas (SIAs) are industrial land 
areas designed for investment in 
downstream processing and other 
heavy or strategic industrial activities. 

SIAs are located close to Western 
Australia’s abundant resources and 
connected to key infrastructure 
such as roads, rail and ports. 

Projects include:

• Browse LNG Precinct

• Boodarie SIA

• Anketell SIA

• Burrup SIA

• Maitland SIA

• Ashburton North SIA

• Oakajee SIA

• Mungari SIA

• Kwinana SIA

• Kemerton SIA

• Shotts SIA

• Mirambeena SIA

Ashburton North Strategic 
Industrial Area 
The Ashburton North Port and 
8,000 hectare Strategic Industrial 
Area near Onslow will facilitate the 
development of BHP Billiton and 
Chevron’s Carnarvon Basin gas fields 
and other LNG and downstream 
processing industries in the future. 

We are working with the 
Department of State Development 
to develop an Improvement 
Scheme for the Ashburton North 
Strategic Industrial Area.

The Improvement Scheme, which 
has been initiated by the West 
Australian Planning Commission, will 
be lodged for approval in 2015-16.

Anketell Strategic Industrial Area 
We are working with the Department 
of State Development to plan a 1,000 
hectare Strategic Industrial Area 
adjacent to the future Anketell Port 
near Karratha/Roebourne which will 
facilitate mining and downstream 
processing industries in the future.  

BROWSE LNG PRECINCT

BURRUP SIA

MAITLAND SIA 

OAKAJEE SIA

KEMERTON SIA

ASHBURTON NORTH SIA

MIRAMBEENA SIA

BOODARIE SIA

ANKETELL SIA

MUNGARI SIA

SHOTTS SIA



10,000
JOBS

250
BUSINESSES

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS  |  28

ROCKINGHAM INDUSTRY ZONE

The scope for Rockingham 
Industry Zone to support light, 
service, commercial, heavy and 
general industrial sectors was 
highlighted during an Open 
Day at Rockingham Industry 
Zone in February this year, with 
a number of local businesses 
attending to discuss their future 
land requirements. 

The development caters for 
a wide range of business 
types and industries, including 
chemical, petroleum, 
warehousing transport and 
logistics, small-to-medium 
fabrication works and many more.

When fully developed, 
Rockingham Industry Zone is 
expected to accommodate more 
than 500 businesses delivering up 
to 6,500 local jobs. 

ENTERPRISE PARK, WANGARA

April 2015 marked the 
completion of Enterprise Park, 
an industrial estate spanning 
143 hectares developed over a 
26 year time frame.

From initial planning in the late 
1980s, Enterprise Park has grown 
to accommodate more than 
250 businesses and support 
approximately 10,000 jobs over 
its development life.

The Hon Terry Redman MLA, 
Minister for Regional Development; 
Lands, City of Wanneroo Deputy 
Mayor Dot Newton, as well as a 
number of local businesses who 
contributed to the success of this 
estate, joined us to celebrate this 
important milestone. 

In 1976, only 11 per cent of 
Wanneroo’s employed residents 
worked within the local area. 
This figure now sits at almost 
40 per cent, with the development 
of Enterprise Park playing a 
significant role in this growth. 

MERIDIAN PARK, NEERABUP

Meridian Park will 

supply industrial land 

to Perth’s fast growing 

northern corridor for 

the next 30-plus years. 

Located six kilometres north 
of Joondalup within the City of 
Wanneroo, Meridian Park forms 
part of the 1,000 hectare Neerabup 
Industrial Area. Meridian Park is fast 
becoming a key employment hub for 
residents in Perth’s north, with One 
Steel, Bunnings Trade, Trackspares 
and a number of other businesses 
already operating from the estate. 

Construction of Neerabup Road 
to connect the Mitchell Freeway 
extension to realigned Flynn Drive 
will improve road access to the 
Neerabup Industrial Area.

Meridian Park, Neerabup

Enterprise Park, Wangara



BROOME ROAD INDUSTRIAL PARK

An industrial park supporting the growth 
of jobs and local businesses in Broome is 
a step closer with pre-sales for Stage 1 of 
the Broome Road Industrial Park opening 
in February this year.

Strategically located just 8km from the 
town centre and 16km from Broome 
Port, the Industrial Park represents an 
investment of more than $50 million into 
the Broome economy. 

The ‘industry’ zoning provides 
flexibility for a wide range of business 
types including transport, logistics, 
construction, equipment hire and 
many more. 

Civil works at Broome Road Industrial 
Park are underway, with titles expected 
early 2016.
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Crossroads Industrial
Artist impression for illustrative purposes

CROSSROADS INDUSTRIAL

Two new industrial estates are planned to support 
Western Australia’s continued economic growth and 
provide important employment opportunities in their 
local communities. 

The first three stages of the 44 hectare Crossroads 
Industrial Estate within the Forrestdale Business Park 
West, has been released to the market, including 
11 ‘Service Commercial’, 28 ‘Light Industry’ and two 
‘General Industry’ lots. 

The 27 hectare Forrestdale Business Park West is on 
the corner of Ranford Road and Tonkin Highway. It 
is nine kilometres to Canning Vale and Roe Highway, 
11 kilometres to the Kwinana Freeway and just over 
20 kilometres to Welshpool and Perth Airport.

An estimated 300 businesses are expected to open 
within the broader Forrestdale Business Park over 
the next 10 years providing up to $4 billion in annual 
economic output and employment for more than 
4,000 people.



SuperTowns
A key focus is the support and 
delivery of committed initiatives as 
part of the $85.5 million Royalties 
for Regions SuperTowns funding 
package to maximise the benefit 
of the investment in those towns 
identified as SuperTowns. 

REJUVENATING THE REGIONS
We work to deliver a State-wide land and 

infrastructure development strategy for 

regional Western Australia to maximise 

economic development and the potential 

to create sustainable communities, improve 

infrastructure, revitalise towns and provide land. 
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With funding support from the State Government, our Regional 
Development Assistance Program (RDAP) is helping local 
authorities to build communities across Western Australia
It was established to address 
the prohibitive costs sometimes 
associated with developments in 
regional WA, which can make them 
unviable for private developers. In 
addition, the supply of privately 
developed land is often limited, or 
non-existent.

Through the RDAP, the State 
Government provides LandCorp 
with limited funding to deliver 
regional projects that are essential 
to supporting the revitalisation 
and growth of regional towns and 
centres. 

Under the RDAP, local authorities 
can apply to our assistance 
to progress potential land 
development projects in their local 
government areas.

Regional Centres 
Development Plan
This Government initiative is 
designed to assist regional 
centres deliver revitalisation and 
development opportunities. It 
involves collaboration with the 
Regional Development Council 
and the Department of Regional 
Development to implement the 
Regional Centre Development 
Plan Phase 2. We are assisting the 
Government by project managing 
the growth planning process of the 
Regional Centres Development Plan.



THE PILBARA 

Pilbara Cities
Pilbara Cities is a long-term State 
Government vision to be delivered 
over a number of investment cycles. 
$1 billion of Royalties for Regions 
funding has been committed to 
create desirable places to live and 
work in the Pilbara.

• Pilbara Cities aims to build the 
population of Karratha and Port 
Hedland into major cities of 
50,000 people and Newman to 
15,000 people, with other Pilbara 
towns also to be enhanced to 
become more attractive and 
sustainable communities.

• Land supply in the Pilbara has 
been dramatically addressed over 
the past 12 to 18 months with the 
cost of housing and rentals having 
dropped substantially in Karratha, 
Port Hedland and Newman.  

• A range of housing product 
is now available and we are 
working to ensure that a pipeline 
of development ready land is 
in place.

• Work on delivery of the Karratha 
City Centre is on schedule, with 
construction of Karratha Terrace 
West completed. 

• Karratha Town Centre 
infrastructure upgrade is 
transforming the functionality of 
the centre with the public-square 
and decked car park complete 
and further works include a 
commercial building. 

• The City Centre Infrastructure 
Works Stage 1 (Main Street) is 
complete, as is the construction 
of Karratha Terrace from Sharpe 
Avenue to Balmoral Road other 
works associated with the 
Health Campus.  
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THE MID WEST

Site remediation begins for 
next phase of Geraldton’s 
Batavia Coast Marina 
Remediation, which commenced 
at Batavia Coast Marina Stage 2 
in March this year, represents 
a significant milestone in the 
redevelopment of the former rail 
marshalling yards in Geraldton.

Royalties for Regions contributed 
$3.86 million in funding towards 
the project.

Development is being undertaken 
in collaboration with the Mid 
West Development Commission 
in partnership with the City of 
Greater Geraldton. The jewel in the 
crown of this major infrastructure 
project is the planned creation of a 
new vibrant inner city destination 
for the community.

The mixed-use precinct ultimately 
will offer the community and 
visitors a place to meet and 
socialise, supported by residential 
accommodation and a range of 
commercial opportunities such as 
shops and eateries.

The development to Water 
Sensitive Cities principles is also 
planned to demonstrate innovation 
in sustainability.

In keeping with the site’s heritage, 
and to reflect its location adjacent 
to one of the busiest marinas on 
the Coral Coast, the new precinct 
will be known as Station Square at 
Batavia Coast Marina. 

Onslow
In Onslow, local residents were 
given preferential access to a 
pre-release of the first large scale 
residential land sale in the town for 
20 years.

Unprecedented demand for 
new housing due to increased 
resource industry activity around 
Onslow makes this land release an 
important milestone in the evolution 
of the Pilbara town.

Karratha City Centre Main Street

• A range of lots are available at 
Madigan Estate in Baynton West. 

• At the Homemaker Centre at Gap 
Ridge Industrial Estate in Karratha, 
we are working to significantly 
improve the retail offering for 
residents and help facilitate 
town centre revitalisation by 
providing a location which offers 
large format retail land. Late last 
year, a Business Case endorsed 
a staged land release and as a 
result, a pre-sales campaign was 
subsequently launched.



OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS  |  32

Newman Town Centre
As part of the Pilbara Cities 
initiative the town of Newman is 
undergoing significant change in 
accordance with the Newman Town 
Centre Revitalisation Project – with 
major improvements in amenities 
and services.

Stage 3 Town Centre works, funded 
by $19.9 million from Royalties for 
Regions, is nearing completion. 
As part of the revitalisation, three 
lots have been created for BHP by 
way of a land swap agreement. To 
support BHP’s $30 million, 4,500 
square metre retail facility which, 
when complete, will be managed St 
Barts, a not-for-profit organisation. 
Operational profits will be used 
to support various community 
programs.

The Newman Town Square Master 
Plan has been ratified by the Council 
of the Shire of East Pilbara.

South Hedland Town Centre
Following the $23.3 million Stage 
1 upgrade of the South Hedland 
Town Centre, the $53.94 million 
Stage 2 of the revitalisation 
project is underway and involves 
the release of 100 hectares 
of inner city land for 750 new 
dwellings and various commercial 
opportunities including an 
entertainment precinct. Included 
in the revitalisation of the Town 
Centre is the redevelopment of 
the South Hedland Shopping 
Centre which we are facilitating.

Development for a number of 
residential dwellings and mixed-
use commercial options is in 
various stages of development 
by the private sector as a result 
of the sale of a number of 
development lots. This includes 
town houses, apartments, 
commercial floor space, two and 
three bedroom units and retail.

Waterfront Planning for 
Port Hedland
Development of the Port 
Hedland waterfront will deliver a 
marina precinct with a variety of 
potential uses.

WEST KIMBERLEY

We are working with the Kimberley 
Development Commission and 
the Shire of Broome on economic 
profiling, and will provide support 
for progression of growth planning 
as required.

Broome North

To date, 381 lots have 

been released from 

existing stocks at Broome 

North, 349 of which have 

been purchased. 

We continue to seek planning 
solutions for the delivery of affordable 
land, and plan for future releases. 
Notably, 67 per cent of sales to-date 
were below the annual median land 
price for the Broome area. 

381
LOTS RELEASED

67%
OF SALES WERE 
BELOW THE ANNUAL 
MEDIAN LAND PRICE

Newman Town Centre
Artist impression for illustrative purposes



OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS  |  33

A contract of sale for $1.5 million has been entered into with 
Queensland-based AustPro Management Services Group 
who plan to develop a mix of retail, office, hospitality and 
residential apartments. 

The sale of Lot 1, with an option to purchase Lot 2, is a great 
outcome for the City of Bunbury, indicating confidence 
among national investors in the prosperity of the South West 
region. With a developer now secured for the first two lots, 
civil works to create all five lots in the precinct are expected 
to begin later this year. 

Buckingham Way 
In the State’s South West, the much 
anticipated Collie Buckingham Way 
estate reached a market milestone 
with the release of land in the  
20-lot Stage 2 of the estate.

Further stages will be progressed 
according to market demand. Once 
fully complete, Buckingham Way will 
accommodate up to 235 lots in an 
estate that has been designed for 
community living.  

Buckingham Way supports the 
vision for Collie as a key regional 
centre under the State Government’s 
Royalties for Regions funded 
SuperTowns initiative.

THE SOUTH WEST

Bunbury Waterfront 

Following the success of the Bunbury 

Waterfront’s Marlston Hill and Marlston 

Waterfront projects, the Koombana 

North project is now taking shape with 

the first landmark site at Koombana 

North going under contract.
Koombana North
Artist impression for illustrative purposes
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THE GREAT SOUTHERN 

Middleton Beach Hotel Site
Acquisition of the former 
Middleton Beach hotel site, 
which will facilitate and enable 
the development of this 
premium but derelict site, has 
been finalised.

Work is now underway to 
ensure involvement of the local 
community in plans to determine 
the site’s future purpose. 

PEEL

Mandurah Junction Maisonettes
Changes to the State Government’s 
multi-residential housing codes 
prompted us to promote revamped 
contemporary maisonettes at 
Mandurah Junction, one of Western 
Australia’s first activity centres. As 
part of the planning for the estate, 
we wanted to incorporate a broad 
spectrum of medium density living.

In addition to traditional single and 
two storey townhouses, apartments, 
duplexes and triplexes, we saw the 
opportunity to revisit the maisonette 
as an affordable housing option. 
Maisonette is a derivative of the 
French word ‘maison’, and is defined 
as a small house. In modern terms, 
it is a self-contained single floor 
apartment in a multi-storey building 
with its own external stairwell access.

Development partner, BGC’s 
Impressions responded to the 
challenge to reinvent a maisonette 
which not only blended with the 
modern streetscape, but met 
building cost limits.

Working closely with a number of 
external consultants, Impressions 
produced three, four-unit 
maisonette dwellings which 
blended seamlessly with the 
existing two-storey streetscape.

Since their introduction at 
Mandurah Junction, when all 12 of 
the maisonettes were sold within 
the first four weeks of release, 
Impressions has built, or is building, 
52 maisonettes throughout the 
metropolitan region providing a 
significant new affordable housing 
option to Western Australians.

The maisonette concept has been 
embraced by the Department of 
Housing as part of its shared home 
ownership and low-cost home 
loan scheme, and private investors 
have also responded positively to 
the concept.

Mandurah Junction
Artist impression for illustrative purposes



The main objectives of this program are to:

Through our Government Services program we are able to 
provide property expertise and advice services to the State. 

OPTIMISING 
GOVERNMENT ASSETS

Disposal of Surplus Government Assets
 The Department of Lands continues to establish its 
Land Asset Management Unit to identifying surplus 
State property assets. We are providing personnel 
to assist the Department of Lands in achieving this 
objective.

We add value to this process by undertaking due 
diligence, rezoning and other clearances to realise the 
highest possible value for the State’s surplus assets.

During the 2014-15 year, the Program sold 22 
properties grossing $43,045,400. Currently 16 
properties with an estimated value of $6 million 
are on the market. A further 33 properties valued 
at approximately $17million are being prepared for 
disposal.

In addition we are managing the disposal of 13 of 
the Top 20 assets identified as being surplus. These 
include the IFAP Murdoch, Cottesloe Deaf School, 
DAFWA’s Forrestfield Medina and Kensington sites, 
The Yirra Yakin Theatre Perth, Lots 420 and 421 
East Rockingham, Portion of the Claremont Oval, 
Fremantle Police Station and Court House, Potato 
Marketing Board site Coogee, Swan Districts Hospital, 
Old Perth Girls, Shenton Park Hospital, Woodside 
Maternity Hospital.

In conjunction with the Department of Lands, due 
diligence is being undertaken on a further 51 sites 

Investigate and remediate 
contaminated sites, both 
orphan and those owned by 
other agencies; and

Dispose of surplus Government 
assets and optimise returns to 
the Government to support 
a broader community 
development agenda.

Provide project management 
and property advice to 
State and Local Government 
agencies;
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identified as surplus to Government needs. We are also 
de-constraining multiple contaminated regional sites 
on behalf of the Department of Agriculture and Food 
WA. These sites have now been added the Department 
of Lands LAMU list of surplus Government sites.

Investigating and remediating Government Sites
The asset management expertise that we apply to  
our own developments is available to other Government 
agencies. Several remediation and contamination 
investigations are currently underway and we are 
providing technical advice to ten State Government 
agencies.

Property Advisory Services to State and 
Local Government 

We have a proven track record in providing property 
advisory services to Government on a number 
of significant projects. These include the Ord-
East Kimberley Expansion and the Claremont and 
Perry Lakes redevelopment projects.
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As the State’s land and infrastructure agency, we 

occupy a unique position in the developer market 

which enables us to provide leadership in the areas of 

innovation and sustainable development.

OUR 
APPROACH



GOLD STAR FOR 6-STAR RATED ALKIMOS BEACH 

Alkimos Beach in 

Perth’s northern 

coastal corridor was 

announced as the first 

6-Star Green Star – 

Communities rated 

residential project 

at the Green Cities 

conference held in 

Melbourne in March.

Developed in alignment with our 
best practice philosophy, Alkimos 
Beach has been recognised by the 
nation’s authority on sustainable 
buildings and communities and 
acknowledged as a world leading 
development with global significance.

The rating sets the bar for 
community development 
and demonstrates our long-
term commitment to realising 
the potential of development 
for the greater benefit of all 
West Australians.

Alkimos Beach is being developed 
in partnership with LendLease, with 
the first stage providing more than 
2,000 homes for 6,000 residents. 
250 lots are scheduled for release 
in 2015-16.

The 240 hectare site is set to 
feature six hectares of conservation 
reserves and 41 hectares of dune 
and foreshore reserves. All homes 
will be within 800 metres of the 
local centre and transport links, with 
30 per cent of the site open space 
and parkland within 200 metres of 
all homes. Walking and cycle paths 
will link the beach, the town centre 
and the train station.

Other sustainability initiatives at 
Alkimos Beach include:

• Mandatory solar panels and gas 
boosted solar hot water systems 
as well as other energy-efficient 
appliances, supported by a 
financial incentive package from 
the Alkimos Beach development 
partners ranging from $4,500 to 
$6000, expected to reduce home 
energy bills by up to 50 per cent

• Smart water initiatives are 
planned throughout the site, 
including storm water retention, 
bore water irrigation and water 
efficient appliances in each home

• Fibre-to-the-premises internet 
connectivity is being provided 
throughout the development 
to encourage a working from 
home environment.

6,000
RESIDENTS

2,000
HOMES IN THE FIRST STAGE

250 LOTS

AIMED TO RELEASE 
IN 2015-16
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Alkimos Beach
Artist impression for illustrative purposes



PILBARA VERNACULAR 
DEMONSTRATION HOUSING

We designed the Pilbara Vernacular 
to provide an overarching set of 
design values and strategies that 
will help create a unique Pilbara 
style of housing.

In a first for the Pilbara region,  
four builders have constructed 
homes designed specifically for 
Karratha. By building for the local 
climate and culture the houses 
offer improved liveability and 
reduced running costs.

Constructed by Eaton Building, 
Timik, Fleetwood Building 
and Summit Homes, the five 
display homes are based on the 
core principles of our Pilbara 
Vernacular Handbook.

The Pilbara Vernacular 
Demonstration Home is the centre 
piece of Karratha’s Madigan Display 
Village and was designed by Gresley 
Abas Architects to be 100 per cent 
carbon neutral and have an 8-star 
energy rating, the equivalent of 
removing 123 cars from the road  
for a year.

Following its launch, the Display 
Village was open to the public 
for six months. 

THE VIVE AT CRAIGIE

Exciting new home 

technology will 

measure energy 

savings at The Vive 

at Craigie. We are 

delivering on our 

commitment to 

‘Innovation through 

Demonstration’, with 

the launch of a new 

innovation project, 

‘Cool Earth’.

This demonstration project will  
be built at The Vive at Craigie -  
an urban infill development north 
of Perth. It aims to measure the 
effectiveness of an open loop 
ground source heat pump system  
to heat and cool homes, and has  
the potential to significantly  
reduce household heating and 
cooling costs.

In conjunction with the Alcock 
Brown-Neaves (ABN) Group, we 
will construct two identical homes 
at The Vive. One will contain the 
new technology and the other will 
not. Over a two year period the 
effectiveness of the system will be 
carefully monitored and analysed to 
measure its success.

The open loop ground source 
system works by using the near 
constant temperature of ground 
water to improve the efficiency of a 
reverse-cycle air conditioning unit, 
rather than using outdoor air to 
warm or cool the unit’s refrigerant 
like most air conditioning units. 
And as an open loop system, the 
warmed or cooled groundwater can 
then be either reinjected into the 
groundwater aquifer or used  
for garden irrigation or other  
non-drinking water uses around  
the house.

The project is the first to monitor 
the efficiencies compared with 
conventional home heating and 
cooling in Western Australia and 
we are hopeful test results will show 
major cost and energy savings.

This exciting project has the 
potential to provide an alternate 
option for householders looking to 
reduce energy costs and run more 
environmentally friendly, efficient 
and comfortable homes.

To deliver the project, 

we have partnered 

with the ABN Group, 

GeoExchange 

Australia, Carbonomics 

Australia and  

The University of 

Western Australia. 
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Pilbara Vernacular 
Demonstration House



WHITE GUM VALLEY

WGV at White 
Gum Valley 
is Western 
Australia’s first 
residential 
project to 
achieve national 
recognition 
through the 
international 
sustainability 
initiative, One 
Planet Living.

The project will demonstrate that 
sustainable living can be affordable 
living - with future residents 
of single lots who take up the 
sustainability package saving up to 
$1200 on their annual power and 
water bills.

We are testing new technologies 
on behalf of the development 
industry to demonstrate that new 
and innovative models can be 
commercially viable.

One Planet Living’s energy and 
carbon principles aim to achieve 
“net zero carbon” and WGV features 
a range of energy initiatives:

• Sustainability Package Rebate: 
PV system size upgrade to meet 
zero-energy potential, plus 
supply of a developed deciduous 
tree for seasonal shading.

• Low energy Water Sources: 
Alternate water sources for 
non-potable uses (toilet flushing, 
clothes washing and garden 
irrigation) produced at lower 
energy value than mains water.

• Design Guidelines: A suite of 
requirements and guidance 
to ensure that buildings are 
high performance for energy 
emissions.

• Climate responsive layout: 
orientation of lots to support 
passive solar design.

• Climate Responsive 
Landscaping: Use of deciduous 
trees to achieve seasonal 
shading.

• Diverse Dwelling Types: More 
likely that people will select an 
appropriate sized dwelling, rather 
than over-sizing.

The development will be the subject 
of a four year Living Laboratory 
research program as part of the 
Cooperative Research Centre for 
Low Carbon Living to monitor 
the performance of the precincts 
various building types, including 
the Gen Y Demonstration Housing 
Project. The Gen Y project provides 
an innovative, affording housing 
solution for a new generation of 
buyers.
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WGV residential estate
Artist impression for illustrative purposes
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CREATING NEW KNOWLEDGE WITH RESEARCH

Our research team provides information and insights to assist with our business decision making.

Activity Benefits 
Emerging Trends Research Providing an in-depth understanding of emerging issues and delivering 

key insights to enable informed decision making.

Community Research Helping to better understand and address community needs, 
expectations and concerns.

Customer Research Helping to better target and address customers’ needs by developing a 
greater understanding of our customer needs, behaviours and attitudes.

Economic Assessment Providing evidence of economic value and social benefits. 

Land/Dwelling Demand Providing insight to help answer project planning questions. 

Specialised case studies and 
analysis

Providing insight and guidance for new or innovative areas.

Regular trends update 
Reports

Helping to keep staff abreast of market intelligence and topical issues 
impacting land and dwelling developments.

Highlights

Of particular note is the following 
key research activities conducted:

Apartment Research

In order to deliver upon our 
commitment to generate 
housing through the use of infill 
development and achieve higher 
housing densities, it is important we 
have a clear understanding of the 
apartment market.  The research 
team, in conjunction with Urbis and 
Colliers, compiled a detailed report 
on the current apartment market in 
Greater Metropolitan Perth.

Results:

 • the existing apartment market 
is largely made up of investor 
properties, with two-thirds of 
apartments being rented;

 • on average, around 3,500 
apartments are sold in Perth 
each year; 

 • apartment sales volume is not 
impacted by changing interest 
rates to the same extent as 
separate house sale;

 • the South-West metro sector is 
making up an increasing share 
of new apartments;

 • building approvals for 
apartments were growing faster 
than sales; and

 • high levels of supply were 
forecast in the pipeline for 
the next few years with more 
than 2,500 apartments due 
for completion in 2015, and an 
additional 6,500 potentially 
being delivered in 2016.

Geraldton Batavia Coast Marina 
Stage 2 Town Square Community 
and Purchaser Research

In conjunction with the City of 
Greater Geraldton and the Mid 
West Development Commission 

we are developing Stage Two 
of the Geraldton Batavia Coast 
Marina (BCM2).  The development 
is currently at concept stage and 
therefore local community and 
potential purchaser input was 
crucial to understand what will 
make the development a place 
where people want to visit, work 
and live.

A mix of quantitative and qualitative 
research was conducted to gauge 
community views and understand 
potential appeal to purchasers.

Results:

 • the community was excited by 
the concept of a town square 
and BCM2, and felt it would be a 
great project;

 • respondents felt the biggest 
gap in Geraldton was food and 
entertainment.  Having this 
concentrated in one precinct 
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was seen as a positive in terms 
of local and tourist appeal;

 • investors were the most 
interested market for the 
development, due to the 
location and the potential return 
on investment; and

 • alternative brands were also 
tested to determine market 
appeal.

Karratha Baynton West and Broome 
North Residents Research

Combined with our Customer 
Post Purchase research, additional 
studies were conducted with 
residents in the established estates 
of Karratha Baynton West and 
Broome North 

Previous customer satisfaction 
research had always focused on 
recent purchasers or potential 
purchasers.  However, we did not 
have any knowledge about longer 
term customer satisfaction and 
what it was like to actually live in 
one of our estates.

In order to do this, a mix of 
qualitative and quantitative research 
was conducted for the Karratha 
Baynton West and Broome North 
estates with owner occupier 
residents, investors and renters.

Results:

 • for the most part, these 
residents and purchasers were 
satisfied(90 per cent Broome 
North and 82 per cent Karratha 
Baynton West);

 • parklands were the number one 
most satisfying aspect of living 
in Broome North and Karratha 
Baynton West;

 • having good schools nearby and 
a friendly community also made 
for a great place to live;

 • lot size was the major motivator 
for purchase at Broome North 
(with an average block size of 
692m2), however it was also 
the single greatest source of 

dissatisfaction for residents in 
Karratha Baynton West whose 
lots ranged from 350-635m2

 • in Broome North, those who 
participated in a LandCorp 
run community event had the 
highest levels of satisfaction 
with the estate; and

 • in Broome North, 81 per cent 
were satisfied with the energy 
efficiency of their house as a 
result of following the design 
guidelines.

Research results can now 
be incorporated into future 
developments in Broome, Karratha 
and other relevant projects. As a 
result of the research, we brought 
forward a pocket park in the 
Madigan Road precinct in Karratha.

Density Update Research 

With our focus firmly on 
sustainability and delivering infill 
project opportunities, density has 
become an important topic.  We 
have an obligation to understand 
attitudes towards increasing 
housing density and in 2011 a 
survey was conducted regarding 
this.  In late 2014 that survey 
was repeated to see if people’s 
attitudes had changed during that 
time.  The survey was undertaken 
with approximately 400 Perth 
metropolitan residents. 

Results indicate that opinions about 
density appear to be changing 
with people being less accepting 
of urban sprawl and the majority of 
people feeling that Perth’s growth 
should be accommodated via infill 
rather than Greenfield development 
on the fringes.

Acceptability of building heights for 
apartments had also changed with 
greater heights now being found 
more acceptable than they were 
in 2011.

Customer Post Purchase Tracking 
Research

Results of our 2014 Post Purchase 
survey of residential customers 
clearly showed an outstanding 
performance. Just 6 per cent of 
purchasers were dissatisfied with 
their purchase experience.

Middleton Beach Community 
Survey 

The planning process for the 
Middleton Beach redevelopment 
site will soon be underway. To 
ensure the community was 
appropriately consulted and 
engaged and identify any 
significant issues early, a survey was 
undertaken by our Research Team 
to give the community a voice and 
provide their opinions and feedback 
regarding the redevelopment site.  

The survey was made available to 
the public online and via hardcopy 
available at the City of Albany civic 
centre and the local library.  It was 
advertised via local papers and the 
City of Albany website and open for 
comment between 12 February and 
8 March 2015.

There was a strong community 
response with more than 200 
surveys completed. The research 
found there was a high level 
of community support for 
redevelopment of the site, with the 
most preferred amenities including 
high quality tourist accommodation, 
a café, family and fine dining 
restaurants and a function centre. 
The community felt any residential 
housing on the site should be kept 
to a minimum.



We have a proud history around supporting industry 
advocacy and communities in which we are active through a 
modest sponsorship agenda. This philosophy aligns with our 
desire to recognise the significant role played by grass roots 
and industry organisations. 

Examples of this important activity in 2014-15 include:

• ANZAC Albany

• Heart Foundation Healthy Active by Design

• CEDA State of the Regions Series

• Gascoyne Growers’ Market

• Brunswick Agricultural Society Show

• Curtin University - School of Built Environment Development 
Process Award

ANZAC Albany

We were honoured 

to support The Princess 

Royal Harbour Lights  

in Albany. 

Presented by Lotterywest on the 
shore of Albany’s harbour, The 
Princess Royal Harbour Lights was a 
commemorative light and projection 
show commemorating the centenary 
of the departure of the first convoy of 
Australian and New Zealand troops 
from Albany.
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The Waterfront at Albany

SPONSORSHIP AND
COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIP
COMMITMENT



Heart Foundation Healthy 
Active by Design

We are the proud 

sponsor of Healthy 

Active by Design 

(HABD). 

Developed by the Heart 
Foundation in Western Australia 
in collaboration with several State 
Government agencies, HABD 
is a tool to inform the design of 
communities that support and 
promote healthy and active living. 

Practical guidance, checklists and 
case studies are categorised into 
nine key design features to assist 
planners, urban designers and 
related professionals to design a 
built environment that enables 
people to be healthy and active in 
their community. 

CEDA State of the 
Regions Series

We are a major 

sponsor of The 

Committee for 

the Economic 

Development of 

Australia (CEDA) West 

Australian State of 

the Regions series of 

one-day conferences, 

being conducted 

throughout the regions 

of Western Australia.

This 10-part series began in 
August 2014 and is scheduled 
to conclude in mid-2016, and 
brings together local and 
State leadership to explore the 
developmental challenges and 
opportunities throughout regional 

Western Australia.

Gascoyne Growers’ Market
Last year we were pleased to be 
the major sponsor of the Gascoyne 
Growers’ Market, a unique market 
place creating outlet opportunities 
for local fresh produce growers, and 
at the same time supporting local 
amenity and community spirit. The 
Gascoyne Growers’ Market is run by 
a committee of management that 
employs a part-time coordinator 
to guidelines developed from 
the Australian Farmers’ Markets 
Association (AFMA), to ensure 
the integrity of the operation. 

Brunswick Agricultural 
Society Show
In October last year, we were 
pleased to sponsor the Brunswick 
Agricultural Society Show, 
providing a bus service for the 
local community to make sure 
everyone could get to the show, and 
back home safely. A major event 
on the community calendar, the 
Show celebrates the agricultural 
heritage of the town and creates a 
welcome opportunity for friends 
and neighbours to celebrate their 
agricultural achievements, and 
their community spirit. 
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Shoreline
Artist impression for illustrative purposes



CREATIVITY IN LAND DEVELOPMENT 
PROCESS REWARDED

In March 2015 we were proud 

to congratulate Zhao Wei Ooi, 

the recipient of the LandCorp 

sponsored Curtin University’s 

School of Built Environment’s 

Development Process Award.

Zhao was recognised as preparing 
the most creative proposal to 
improve the West Australian land 
development process.

As an organisation with a firmly held 
focus on achieving best practice, we 
believe new thinking is critical, not only 
to support the future needs of our state 
but also to delivering the potential of the 
Government’s development agenda.

With young men and women like Zhao 
Wei seeking to challenge and change 
the existing development paradigm we 
can be assured the future of the industry 
is in good shape.
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LandCorp chief executive Frank Marra and Award Development Process winner, Zhoa Wei Ooi.



EVENTS
Promoting and supporting community events across our regional 

and metropolitan programs is an important part of our contribution 

to the development of connected and thriving communities, and 

to acknowledging the traditional heritage of the land we develop. 

We were pleased to support a number of community-led events at 

our developments in the past year.

Alkimos Beach Christmas Twilight Picnic

Hundreds of people from Alkimos 

Beach and surrounding communities 

came together to join the fun and 

festivities at the Alkimos Beach Christmas 

twilight picnic. 

Held in Escarpment Park, which was beautifully decorated 
with twinkling Christmas lights, families were treated to live 
entertainment as well as a host of Christmas craft activities for the 
kids including face painting, roving performers and an energetic 
dancing and singing Santa. 

While residents mingled and got to know their new neighbours 
they also helped make Christmas brighter for families in need 
by giving generously to a Christmas Wish Giving Tree, donating 
unwrapped gifts and non-perishable food items, or making a 
donation for the Salvation Army Appeal.

Requests to repeat the event for Christmas 2015 were a testament 
to its success. 
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Key project steps included:

Conducting design workshops 
with the Clontarf Academy 
students and the project team 
landscape architects UDLA, so 
students were able to define their 
garden project vision, progress the 
design and produce a plan.

Workshops were undertaken with 
the Clontarf Academy students to 
demonstrate the processes and 
advantages of sustainable site 
clearing practices. 

Replants WA is also working 
with the College manual arts 
department to demonstrate the 
milling of felled site timber. The 
material produced will be utilised 
by the manual arts students and 
also incorporated into the garden 
itself – as seating and signage.

Local Aboriginal artist Ash Collard 
painted a stunning wall mural as a 
backdrop to the main garden. The 
boys discussed many names for 

the garden and settled on Moorn 
Norp Warkinj Boodja, which 
means Black Boy Talking Place.

A positive spin-off to this project 
has seen several Gilmore Clontarf 
Academy boys subsequently 
gaining part time employment 
with Replants WA at weekends.

In addition, we worked with 
Replants WA and local 
Primary Schools, by donating 
and planting out grasstrees at 
the schools. We aim to relocate 
100 per cent of the grass trees 
from the Orelia Trails project site 
area and are well on the way to 
meeting this target.

Orelia Trails is one of our 
residential infill projects which 
will transform the residential area 
surrounding Gilmore College. 
The site is some six hectares in 
size and is within walking distance 
of the town centre.

Gilmore College – 
Clontarf Garden Initiative 

The Clontarf 

Garden initiative is a 

community-based 

project, within Gilmore 

College, a high school 

across the road from 

our future project, 

Orelia Trails, in the 

Kwinana  

Education Precinct. 

Gilmore Clontarf Academy, located 
on the high school campus at 
Kwinana, places great emphasis 
on educational and behavioural 
outcomes, employment prospects 
and leadership qualities for 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
boys from Years 7 to 12.

One of the key principles for the 
development of Orelia Trails is the 
aim to retain a stand of existing 
trees within the future park area. 
An optimal number of grasstrees 
were relocated to demonstrate 
sustainable site clearing practices, 
prior to civil works commencing 
in May 2015. 

The aim to relocate grasstrees, 
along with other salvage initiatives, 
provided an excellent opportunity 
for us to work with the College and 
Gilmore Clontarf Academy students 
to create a native garden adjacent 
to the Clontarf Academy. 

After five months of planning, 
preparation and planting the 
garden was officially opened on 
9 September 2014.
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A Clontarf student trimming a grass tree in 
preparation for transplanting to the native garden.



 Cockburn Central 

West was cleansed  

in an Aboriginal 

smoking ceremony  

by traditional owners 

of the Nyungar 

Whadjuk region. 

The traditional ritual was 
conducted on site ahead of the 
commencement of works to 
develop the City of Cockburn’s 
new state-of-the-art aquatic and 
recreation facility that will also 
become the new home of the 
Fremantle Dockers. 

In attendance was City of Cockburn 
Mayor Logan Howlett, City of 
Cockburn CEO Stephen Cain, 
Fremantle Dockers representative 
Roger Hayden, Senior Nyungar 
Whadjuk representatives including 
Elder Reverend Sealin Garlett 
and LandCorp General Manager 
Metropolitan, Luke Willcock. 

The smoking ceremony is an 
important tradition and the smoke 
of the Balga tree is used to cleanse 
and purify an area and bring unity 
and good spirits to the land in 
preparation for a new beginning.

An exhaustive native fauna relocation 
program was undertaken ahead of 
site works to protect and preserve 
the native wildlife found on the site.

The innovative, 30 hectare 
mixed-use development will 
incorporate diverse apartments and 
townhouses as well as the enviable 
sport and recreation facilities 
that will ultimately be accessible 
for the community and boost 
local job creation. 

Cockburn Central West will extend 
the existing community created 
by the nearby Cockburn Central 
Town Centre and will attract 
new residents and businesses 
to the area which we expect 
will significantly increase local 
employment opportunities.

The smoking ceremony is an important 

tradition and the smoke of the Balga tree 

is used to cleanse and purify an area and 

bring unity and good spirits to the land in 

preparation for a new beginning.

30
HECTARE MIXED-USED 
DEVELOPMENT
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Nyungar Whadjuk Elder 
Reverend Sealin Garlett begins 
the smoking ceremony

Aquatic Centre at Cockburn Central West
Artist impression for illustrative purposes

Smoking ceremony at Cockburn Central West



MANAGING PARTNERSHIPS 
AND RELATIONSHIPS
We have long recognised that successful relationship management 
requires a commitment to actively engage with stakeholders, 
listening and building a relationship with them and then responding 
to their concerns in a mutually beneficial way.  

Since the introduction of our Customer Relationship Management 
system (CRM) some years ago, we have refined our internal  
practices and processes to ensure we realise the potential of this 
invaluable system.

Enhancements introduced to CRM, or relationships in the 2014-15 
reporting year include:

Improved knowledge management across the business 

• Relationship Management

• Procurement

• Customers and Stakeholder engagement

Improved knowledge 
management across  
the business 
CRM is one of the primary  
methods we utilise to share 
stakeholder information across the 
business. The system enhances our 
ability to integrate our Business 
Units by making stakeholder 
and business information freely 
available to each division. 
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Relationship Management
Integrated stakeholder engagement 
planning is developed for key areas 
of the business to ensure we engage 
and regularly communicate with those 
individuals and organisations that play 
an important role in supporting the 
delivery of our 150-plus state-wide 
projects. Our stakeholder engagement 
plans are reviewed on a quarterly 
basis and each plan is overlaid with 
existing plans to avoid duplication. 
Importantly, our engagement program 
is transparent and allows information to 
be freely shared. 

Procurement
We are now able to use CRM to manage our  
pre-qualified contractors and consultant panels which 
has enabled a higher level of efficiency across our 
business. We can now report on location specific 
vendor information quickly and easily and save our 
Procurement team time in the process.

Customers and Stakeholder engagement

We acknowledge that successful 

stakeholder engagement requires a 

commitment to actively engaging 

with communities and aligning our 

business with community values. 

Our 20 plus years’ experience in the land and property 
development industry has confirmed the importance 
of involving local communities from the early stages of 
planning to make sure they have their say.

In the past year we successfully trialled the application 
of custom online engagement tools, combined with 
traditional face-to-face community engagement, 
creating multiple ways for stakeholders of several of our 
major projects including Jolimont, Shenton Park and 
Middleton Beach to have their say. 

We are sharing the results of our online engagement 
with industry through the peak body for community 
engagement, IAP2, and will continue to explore the 
effectiveness of online engagement opportunities for 
future projects.

20
PLUS YEARS’ EXPERIENCE
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Cockburn Central Town Square



Mandurah Junction Table Tennis

It might not be 

Wimbledon, but a 

new outdoor table 

tennis installation at 

Mandurah Junction is 

set to generate plenty 

of competition in more 

ways than one, both 

sporting and artistic.

The table is now in place and ready 
to use and together with the City 
of Mandurah we are putting out 
the challenge for local artists to 
come up with innovative ways 
to decorate it.

Mandurah Junction is a new 
15 hectare residential estate being 
next to the bustling Mandurah Train 
Station to provide a fresh new mix 
of local housing, shopping and 
recreation opportunities.

The table tennis installation was 
one of many interactive pieces of 
public art spread across 4.4 hectare 
of landscaped parklands at the 
emerging estate.

Nearby art pieces include giant 
knives and forks, a larger-than-life 
watering can and a very big pencil, 
so the brief for artists is to submit 
designs in keeping with the ‘home 
and kitchen’ theme of the new 
parkland area.

Along with the public art, the 
community will also enjoy barbecue 
and picnic areas, cycling and walking 
paths, children’s playgrounds, a 
‘kick-about’ area and space for a 
future community garden.

In line with our community 
engagement initiatives we 
have installed a similar table at 
Cockburn Central, which is proving 
popular with people of all ages. 

A CULTURE OF CARING
In the past year we were delighted to foster the 

culture of caring in our workplace, with hundreds 

of staff volunteering their time and effort to 

support a number of worthwhile causes. 
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Mandurah Junction
Artist impression for illustrative purposes



It’s a ‘’Happy Ever After’’  
for these lucky tots

The children at Marmion Avenue 
Community Childcare Centre were 
delighted when their new outdoor discovery 
play space was unveiled recently. Featuring, 
among other things, a story time area with 
a campsite feel, a natural sound instrument 
corner, vegetable and herb garden, 
new trees and tunnel trellis supporting 
a passionfruit vine.

We presented the initiative to create 
a stimulating outdoor garden to the 
committee of the Marmion Child Care 
Centre with our Carine Rise development 
partners, Cedar Woods and St Ives Group 
who saw an opportunity to undertake the 

project as a surprise for the children when 
upgrading perimeter fencing at the centre.

The new outdoor area was designed to be 
an aesthetically pleasing, sustainable and 
safe environment for babies and toddlers.

We’re very happy to have helped create 
this outdoor area for the Marmion 
Child Care Centre.

With landscaping now complete across 
the Carine Rise estate it is not only the tots 
at the childcare centre that are benefiting. 
Site fencing has now been replaced by 
newly planted street verges, tree lined 
streets, grassy parks and a new children’s 
playground, all of which was an important 
consideration in the planning of the Carine 
Rise development.

When complete, Carine Rise will be home to a 
community of approximately 110 residential dwellings, 
comprising a mix of detached houses, townhouses 
and apartments, an aged care facility catering for 
120 people, a retirement village with 161 apartments 
as well as retail, offices and medical facilities.
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STAFF DIG DEEP
It’s a boy!

It is undeniable that we work hard 
on our projects and get a lot of 
satisfaction from meeting our 
milestones and targets. 

However success can come in 
many shapes and sizes and one of 
our latest success stories comes 
with four legs.

This year we launched our Work 
Place Giving program through 
United Way and selected Guide 
Dogs WA as our 2014 charity. 
An impressive and generous 
fundraising effort by staff followed 
culminating in the now famous 
“Good Ride” – a bike ride from Perth 
to Bunbury. As a result we are the 
proud step-parents of a beautiful 
four legged pup named Landy.

All contributions to this very worthy 
cause were valuable, from the 
Guide Dog money boxes in the 
kitchens to the payroll contributions 
and the bike ride sponsors.

Because of the support from 
Payroll staff, the Culture Club, 
Executive and importantly, our bike 
riders whose efforts raised a lazy 
$24,000, we not only raised enough 
for our puppy to undertake the level 
of training needed to transform 
and enrich someone’s life, we also 
had enough left over to support a 
refresher course for a mature dog 
to sharpen its skills.

DREAMFIT FOUNDATION OUR NEW WORK PLACE  
GIVING CHARITY FOR 2015

In 2015 our fund raising efforts, supported 

by our Work Place Giving program, will 

support Dreamfit Foundation.

Dreamfit is a local not-for-profit organisation specialising in 
“Making Dreams Possible” for people with disabilities. 

They do this by designing and building custom equipment to 
overcome the physical limitations faced by children and adults 
with disabilities, enabling them to participate in activities that 
simply would not be possible otherwise.

Our 2015 goal is $20,000 which will enable Dreamfit Foundation 
to undertake the research and development work required to 
mass produce a prototype bungy trampoline, a simple apparatus 
that will improve muscle tone and coordination for children 
confined to a wheelchair. 

$24,000
RAISED
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  DIRECTORS
The Western Australian Land Authority Act 1992 (the Act) 
prescribes that the Board is to comprise between five and 
seven Directors at any one time, with the Minister for Lands 
being responsible for Board appointments.

Persons who held the office of Director during the course 
of the year were as follows:
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The LandCorp Board of Directors 

presents its report for the financial year 

ended 30 June 2015.

Director

Total length of service Date First 
Appointed Term Expiry Date1yr 2yr 3yr 4yr 5yr 6yr 7yr 8yr

Monty House 
(Chairperson)

6 April 2009 30 June 2017

Caroline de Mori 
(Deputy Chairperson)

6 April 2009
30 June 2016 

16 April 2015 (resigned)

Simon Read 27 April 2010 30 June 2018

George McCullagh 
(Deputy Chairperson)

28 September 2010 
(22 June 2015)

30 June 2018

Peter Cooke 8 April 2009* 30 June 2016

Jenny Smithson 1 July 2011 30 June 2015

Peter Gibbons 1 January 2013 30 June 2017

* First appointed 8 April 2009 to 9 June 2010. Reappointed 14 February 2011 and 30 June 2014.



MONTY HOUSE was initially 
appointed Chairperson on 6 April 
2009 and reappointed during the 
period for a further two year term 
expiring 30 June 2017.  Monty 
has enjoyed a distinguished 
40 year career of public 
service, commencing as a Shire 
Councillor and Shire President at 
Gnowangerup. 

As a former Member of Parliament 
representing the Stirling electorate, 
Monty also served as Minister for 
Primary Industry and Fisheries 
as well as Deputy Leader of the 
National Party. Monty is the owner/
manager of an extensive grain and 
sheep farming business in WA. 
Monty has been Chairman, and 
a Board member, of a number of 
private and publicly listed companies 
both in Australia and overseas. He 
is currently External Affairs Director 
of Latent Petroleum, a Member of 
the Australian Institute of Company 
Directors and a serving Justice 
of the Peace.

SIMON READ was initially appointed 
on 27 April 2010 and reappointed 
during the period for a further three 
year term expiring 30 June 2018. 
Simon is Chairperson of the Audit 
and Risk Management Committee 
and has honed a hands-on skill 
set over 25 years of working with 
Australia’s leading corporate 
recovery specialists. 

He has specialised in corporate 
reconstruction, turnaround and 
business improvement.  Simon 
also currently consults to business 
owners, boards and financiers. 
Simon has worked across many 
industries with significant experience 
in forestry, mining, engineering, 
finance and property.  Simon is a 
Graduate of the Australian Institute 
of Company Directors and a 
Chartered Accountant. 

GEORGE MCCULLAGH  
was initially appointed on  
28 September 2010 and  
re-appointed during the 
period for a further three year 
term expiring 30 June 2018. 
He was appointed Deputy 
Chairperson on 22 June 2015. 
George is Chairperson of the 
Governance and Remuneration 
Committee, a member of the 
Audit and Risk Management 
Committee and a member of 
the Planning, Development and 
Communications Committee (as 
of May 2015). 

He was previously a Partner with 
an international consulting firm. 
Across the past decade, George 
has worked as a consultant in 
independent practice, providing 
commercial and advisory 
services to a range of planning, 
resources, infrastructure and 
redevelopment organisations in 
Western Australia. He currently 
serves as an independent 
member of the Audit Committee 
for the Department of Mines and 
Petroleum. George is a Member 
of the Australian Institute of 
Company Directors.
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CURRENT DIRECTORS:

The qualifications, experience and particular responsibilities 
of each Director are set out below.



PETER COOKE was initially 
appointed 8 April 2009 to 9 June 
2010, and reappointed 14 February 
2011 and then 30 June 2014 for 
another two year term expiring  
30 June 2016. Peter is a member of 
the Governance and Remuneration 
Committee, and the Planning, 
Development and Communications 
Committee (for which he became 
Chairperson from May 2015). 
He has a varied and extensive 
background in agriculture, 
agribusiness, marketing, strategic 
planning and communications. 

For the past 17 years he has been 
the principal of Agknowledge, 
a small agribusiness firm 
specialising in providing 
strategic business development 
to a range of companies, 
government departments and 
enterprises across Australia. 

Peter is a member of the Advisory 
Board of the International Institute 
of Agri-food, and a Fellow of the 
Australian Institute of Company 
Directors. He was a Director of 
Landgate (2007-12), a Board 
member of the Rural Adjustment 
and Finance Corporation of WA 
(1996-2000), Chair of the WA 
FarmBis program 1998-2008, and 
Chief Executive Officer of the 
Kondinin Group (1988-1997).  

Until the London Olympics 
Peter chaired the National 
Selection Panel for Australia’s 
Equestrian Olympic team. 

PETER GIBBONS was initially 
appointed on 1 January 2013 and 
reappointed during the period for 
another three years expiring 30 June 
2017. Peter is a member of the Audit 
and Risk Management Committee.  
Peter has extensive experience 
in property investment banking, 
property development and property 
financing and funds management. 
Peter is Managing Director of 
North West Property Consultants 
and has strong knowledge and 
understanding of the issues and 
challenges of regional development.  

He has previously held a number of 
senior Board positions including the 
Board of the Silver Chain Group and 
Commissioner of the West Australian 
Football Commission. Peter is also a  
non-executive director of  
not-for-profit aged care and 
retirement group Bethanie.
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CAROLINE DE MORI was initially 
appointed as a Director on 6 April 
2009 and re-appointed in 2014 for 
another two year term expiring 
30 June 2016. Caroline was 
appointed Deputy Chairperson 
on 29 October 2012, and was 
also Chairperson of the Planning, 
Development and Communications 
Committee and a member of the 
Governance and Remuneration 
Committee. She has experience in 
corporate communications including 
complex land, mining and resource 
development throughout Western 
Australia. Caroline also has experience 
in regional issues, including those 
facing Indigenous communities and 
was a founder and Director of two 
communications consultancies and 
a member of a Federal Government 
Consumer Advisory Committee. 
She is currently Executive Chair 
of EON Foundation Inc and is a 
Graduate of the Australian Institute 
of Company Directors.

Caroline de Mori resigned from the 
Board effective 16 April 2015.

JENNY SMITHSON was initially 
appointed on 1 July 2011 and 
re-appointed for another term 
expiring 30 June 2015.  Jenny 
was a member of the Planning, 
Development and Communications 
Committee. She is a qualified 
town planner and has extensive 
experience in town planning, local 
government and development 
matters. Jenny is a Senior Principal 
of Cardno, an international 
engineering based consulting 
firm. Jenny is a former Director of 
Cardno (WA) and BSD Consultants 
Pty Ltd. 

Jenny has expertise in project 
managing major multi-disciplinary 
projects on behalf of public and 
private sector clients with specific 
expertise in land development and 
approvals negotiation.  She works 
between the Sydney, Canberra 
and Perth offices of Cardno 
and is Cardno’s former National 
Discipline Leader in Planning and 
Urban Design. 

Jenny is a part time 
Commissioner of the NSW 
Land and Environment Court 
and has held former positions 
as a Sessional Member of the 
State Administrative Tribunal, 
Commissioner for the City of 
Cockburn and Shire of Albany, 
WA President of PIA and UDIA 
(WA) Councillor. In 1996 she 
was a finalist for the WA Citizen 
of the Year for her contribution 
to her profession. Jenny is a 
Graduate of the Australian 
Institute of Company Directors. 
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DIRECTORS WHO RESIGNED 
OR TERM EXPIRED DURING 
THE PERIOD.



Details of attendance by Directors at Board meetings  
and Board Committee meetings are set out below:

DIRECTOR BOARD 

AUDIT AND RISK 
MANAGEMENT 

COMMITTEE 

GOVERNANCE AND 
REMUNERATION 

COMMITTEE 

PLANNING, 
DEVELOPMENT AND 
COMMUNICATIONS 

COMMITTEE

 
Meetings 
Attended

Eligible to 
Attend1

Meetings 
Attended

Eligible to 
Attend1

Meetings 
Attended

Eligible to 
Attend1

Meetings 
Attended

Eligible to 
Attend1

Monty House 11 12 4² - 3² - 4² -

Caroline de Mori 7 10 - - 3 3 3 5

Peter Cooke 10 12 - - 3 3 6 6

Peter Gibbons 12 12 4 5 - - - -

George 
McCullagh

12 12 5 5 3 3 2² 1

Simon Read 10 12 5 5 - - - -

Jenny Smithson 11 12 1 -  - -  6 6

1  Indicates the number of meetings held during the period of each Director’s tenure.
2 Directors may attend Committee meetings as an observer.
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   DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS
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   PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Act sets out a clear role for 
LandCorp to ensure the State’s 
future land needs are met in 
a commercially responsible 
manner and establishes lines 
of accountability with the 
State Government.

The functions of LandCorp are:

a) to be an agency which provides, 
or promotes, the provision of 
land for the social and economic 
needs of the State;

b) to be an agency through which 
the Crown and public authorities 
may dispose of land;

c) to be an agency through which 
local governments and regional 
local governments may dispose 
of land in accordance with the 
Local Government Act 1995;

d) to complete the development 
of the Joondalup Centre, in 
accordance with the plan 
referred to in Section 18 
on the land described in 
Schedule 2; and

e) to identify other potential 
centres of population, 
including those in need of 
urban renewal, and use its 
powers to bring about the 
provision or improvement of 
land, infrastructure, facilities or 
services for the same.

There have been no significant 
changes to the nature of principal 
activities during the financial year.

The Western 

Australian Land 

Authority, trading 

as LandCorp, is 

a Government 

trading enterprise 

established under 

the provisions 

of the Western 

Australian Land 

Authority Act 1992. 
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In line with our commercial principles 
specified in Section 19 of the Western 
Australian Land Authority Act 1992, 
development work was undertaken 
against the following Framework:

• performing functions in a 
cost-efficient manner;

• endeavouring to surpass 
long-term financial targets 
specified in its Strategic 
Development Plan; and

• ensuring no new project had 
an expected rate of return 
below a minimum hurdle rate 
specified in the Strategic 
Development Plan. LandCorp 
and Government have agreed 
to set the hurdle rate of return 
as LandCorp’s Weighted 
Average Cost of Capital.

Projects that make 

up the Regional 

Development 

Assistance Program 

are treated as 

one project for 

governance purposes.

OPERATING RESULTS 2014-15 ($M) 2013-14 ($M) 2012-13 ($M) 2011-12 ($M) 2010-11 ($M)

Profit Before Income 
Tax Equivalents

57.562 54.413 68.974 134.575 149.773

Income Tax 
Equivalents Expense

17.271 16.320 20.695 40.400 44.726

Net Profit 40.291 38.093 48.279 94.175 105.047

   FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS



The Western Australian Land 

Authority Act 1992 specifies how 

the dividend is to be determined by 

the Board and Minister. The Board 

of Directors is required to make a 

dividend recommendation to the 

responsible Minister as soon as 

practicable after the end of each 

financial year. The Minister is required 
to consult with the Treasurer and 
either accept the recommendation 
or otherwise determine the dividend 
payable by LandCorp.

The Treasurer determines the 
date the dividend is to be paid 
by LandCorp.

As specified in section 32 of the Western Australian 

Land Authority Act 1992, LandCorp pays rates and taxes. 

The following table outlines payments to Government in the 

last five (5) years in respect of rates, taxes and dividends.
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   RETURNS TO THE STATE

2014-15 ($M) 2013-14 ($M) 2012-13 ($M) 2011-12 ($M) 2010-11 ($M)

Dividends Paid 32.442 31.946 94.070 31.096 31.096

Land Tax 49.863 46.682 41.461 49.246 32.234

Income Tax Expenses 17.271 16.320 20.695 40.400 44.726

Local Government 
Equivalents

6.805 7.967 5.869 4.941 2.612

Stamp Duty 4.088 2.915 3.885 3.523 4.996

Total Returns to 
Government

110.469 105.830 165.980 129.206 115.664

Operating results



In the interval between the end 
of the financial year and the 
date of this report, there has not 
arisen any item, transaction or 
event of a material or unusual 

nature likely, in the opinion of the 
Directors, to significantly affect 
operations, the result of those 
operations, or the state of affairs in 
future financial years. 
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   EVENTS SUBSEQUENT 
TO BALANCE DATE
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Policy for determining the nature 
and amount of emoluments for key 
personnel is designed to attract, 
retain and engage appropriately 
qualified and experienced  
directors and executives. A Board 
sub-committee, the Governance 
and Remuneration Committee, 
assists the Board by ensuring 
that appropriate and effective 
policies, plans and practices are in 
place in relation to remuneration 
arrangements and meets regularly 
to consider relevant matters.

EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ Emoluments
The remuneration of directors is 
determined following independent 
advice from remuneration 
consultants and the Public Sector 
Commission and is approved 
by the Minister.

Remuneration is in the form 
of salary and superannuation 
contributions. Other than these, no 
other post-employment benefits are 
paid to Directors.

In accordance with Section 13(c) 
of Schedule 3A of the Western 
Australian Land Authority Act 1992, 
the following table shows the nature 
and amount of each element for 
each Director.

Directors’ remuneration covers fees 
for attendance at Board meetings 
and committees. Directors are 
not remunerated separately for 
Board and committee attendance. 
Superannuation, at the required 
amount (9.5%), is paid on fees as is 
required under the Superannuation 
Guarantee Administration Act 1992.

DIRECTOR FEES $

Monty House 105,516

Caroline de Mori 58,440

Simon Read 50,890

George McCullagh 50,890

Peter Cooke 50,890

Jenny Smithson 50,890

Peter Gibbons 50,890

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS

No Directors of LandCorp have 
received benefits or have become 
entitled to receive any benefit 
(other than a benefit included in 
the total amount of emoluments 
received or due and receivable by 
Directors) by reason of a contract 
made by LandCorp with the 
Director, or with a firm of which 
the Director is a member, or with 
an entity in which the Director has 
a substantial interest.

   REMUNERATION REPORT

Remuneration arrangements for key 

personnel refers to non-executive 

directors of the board and Executives 

responsible for planning, directing and 

controlling operations.



EXECUTIVE EMOLUMENTS

The Chief Executive and Executives 
are paid a salary and receive 
superannuation contributions in 
line with Government entitlements. 
Where eligible, the private use 
component of a vehicle is provided. 
Decisions are made within the 
context of organisational and 
individual performance as well as 
what is consistent with equivalent 
bodies, industry benchmarks, 
existing government policy and the 
industrial relations system. 

A total fixed remuneration 
(TFR) approach is applied with 
flexible remuneration packaging 
arrangements, in line with industry 
best practice. This means that, 
although the components of the 
TFR or package may vary between 
remuneration reviews, the total 
amount remains constant. 

Superannuation paid is according 
to legislation and availability of 
other benefits (eg vehicles) is 
subject to organisational policy 
and eligibility requirements.

The remuneration of all staff is 
reviewed annually. The Board is 
responsible for the remuneration 
of the chief executive which 
is also reviewed annually (in 
line with Minister-approved 
contract of employment). 

The chief executive, in line with the 
policy set by the Governance and 
Remuneration committee and the 
Board, sets executive remuneration 
based on annual salary survey 
data and advice from independent 
remuneration consultants as 
well as a range of other factors 
including performance and the 
public sector context.

Employees in management 
roles, including executives, are 
employed on individual, market-
based contracts.

No short or long term incentives, 
loans, grant options, rights or 
shares to key management 
personnel are provided.  

The performance of the chief 
executive and the executives is 
monitored against agreed criteria.

In accordance with Section 13(c) 
of Schedule 3A of the Western 
Australian Land Authority Act 1992, 
the details of emoluments provided 
to the five named officers receiving 
the highest emoluments are 
provided for the financial year by 
element of remuneration:

Salary Element 

EXECUTIVES BASE SALARY $

Frank Marra 463,061

Nicholas Wolff 372,260

Kerry Fijac 312,754

John Hackett 304,508

Luke Willcock 304,316

Superannuation Element
Executives are paid superannuation 
in accordance with the 
Superannuation Guarantee 
Administration Act 1992. Currently 
the prescribed level is 9.5% of salary. 

Two Executives are members of the 
Gold State Fund and receive 12% of 
salary in superannuation. Gold State 
Super was a defined benefit super 
scheme open to WA public sector 
employees until 1995. It is now 
closed to new members.

Other Benefits 
(motor vehicle) Element
Other benefits include the private 
use component of a vehicle, for 
those eligible. The value of the car 
to the remuneration package is 
based on private use component 
of the lease and operating costs 
plus Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT). 
All LandCorp vehicles attract a 
contribution from the employee 
to reduce FBT. 

EXECUTIVES
VEHICLE 

BENEFIT $

Frank Marra 12,615

Nicholas Wolff 0

Kerry Fijac 9,593

John Hackett 11,491

Luke Willcock 6,711

Mr Wolff left LandCorp during 
the year and was paid $2,190 on 
termination for unused leave in 
addition to salary.
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Amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand dollars 
in the Directors’ Report and financial statements, unless otherwise 
shown or indicated. 

This Report is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board.

Monty House 
Chairperson

Simon Read 
Director 

24 August 2015

   INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE 
OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

During the reporting period, directors’ and officers’ liability 

insurance was maintained to ensure directors and officers 

are adequately covered.

The policy indemnifies directors 
and officers from loss which he/she 
becomes legally obligated to pay 
on account of any claim first made 
against him/her during the policy 
period for an insured act committed 
before or during the policy period.

The Authority has entered 
into Deeds of Indemnity with 
each Director and Officer to 
indemnify the Director and 
Officer in relation to certain 
liabilities incurred whilst a Director 
or Officer of the Authority.

At the date of this report 
no claims have been made 
against the Directors’ and 
Officers’ insurance policy.

   ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS
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1.  CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate governance has been 
at the very core of the LandCorp 
Board since the establishment of 
the organisation in 1992.  

The current Board of directors 
is committed to the highest 
standards of corporate 
governance and uses a range 
of benchmarks to guide its 
practices, ranging from the Public 
Sector Management Act 1994 to 
the Principles of Good Corporate 
Governance as determined by the 
Australian Stock Exchange (ASX) 
(to the extent they can be applied 
to the organisation).

Corporate governance is 
the system and processes 
adopted to direct and manage 
business and affairs.

A comprehensive system of 
governance practices, developed 
over many years, ensures, at a 
minimum, standards set out in the 
Western Australian Land Authority 
Act 1992 and the Statutory 
Corporations (Liability of 
Directors) Act 1996 are achieved.

The Board of directors and staff 
are focussed on and committed 
to good corporate governance.

The Minister for Lands has 
portfolio responsibility 
for LandCorp. 

The legislation sets the foundation 
for the corporate governance 
framework and structure to 
be given effect by the Board 
of directors, and defines 
reporting requirements.

The Western Australian Auditor 
General conducts annual audits 
of LandCorp.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

2.1 Board role and 
responsibilities 
The Board of directors recognises 
accountability to the Government 
and Minister for Lands.  

This requires the Board to deliver 
the objectives and functions set 
out in the Western Australian 
Land Authority Act 1992.

The Board is accountable to the 
Government for performance and 
responsibilities cover:

• Setting out corporate directions 
and annually submitting the 
annual Statement of Corporate 
Intent and five year Strategic 
Development Plan, including 
financial targets, to the Minister;

• Providing strategic direction 
and approving significant 
strategic corporate objectives;

• Maintaining communication with 
the Minister and Government; 

• Maintaining working 
relationships with management;

• Evaluating Board performance;

• Evaluating performance of the 
chief executive;

• Planning for Board and 
management succession; 

• Recommending director 
remuneration to the Minister;

• Monitoring financial and 
corporate performance;

• Considering and approving half-
yearly and annual reports;

• Assessing social, economic and 
environmental performance;

• Reviewing, ratifying and 
monitoring appropriate systems 
of risk management and 
legal compliance; 

• Satisfying itself that appropriate 
internal control mechanisms 
are in place and are 
being implemented;

• Determining the scope of 
authority (and any limits on 
authority) which is delegated 
to the chief executive or any 
other officer;

• Monitoring appropriate 
resources are available to senior 
management; and

• Maintaining an emphasis 
on audit activities.

The Board has worked 
throughout the year to ensure 
the organisation’s vision, future 
directions and strategies are well 
understood and achieved.
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2.2 Board composition

The Board comprises 

independent 

directors appointed 

by the Minister in 

accordance with 

relevant provisions of 

the Western Australian 

Land Authority  

Act 1992. 

At least four of the directors need 
to have relevant experience in 
housing, industry, commerce, 
finance, land development, 
town planning or engineering, 
which provide a set of relevant 
experiences and knowledge. The 
skills and experiences of directors 
who were on the Board during the 
reporting period are set out in the 
Directors’ Report.  

The chairperson and deputy 
chairperson are appointed by the 
Minister for Lands.

In accordance with Schedule 1A, 
Clause 1 of the Western Australian 
Land Authority Act 1992, directors 
may be appointed for a term of 
up to three years.  There are also 
provisions in the Act which enable 
the Minister to reappoint directors 
for a further term on the Board.  
The chief executive is not permitted 
to be appointed as a director.  

The Board does not believe 
any director has served on the 
Board for a period which could 
materially interfere, or reasonably 
be perceived to interfere, with the 
director’s ability to act in the best 
interests of LandCorp.

In addition, it is considered 
each director is independent of 
management and any business 
or other relationship that could 
materially interfere with the 
exercise of objective, unfettered 
or independent judgement by 
the director of the director’s 
ability to act in the best 
interests of LandCorp.

The induction process includes 
briefings with the chief executive 
officer and senior management, 
provision of information on key 
corporate and board policies 
and strategic plans and relevant 
project site visits.

All directors are expected 
to undertake professional 
development to maintain skills 
required to discharge their duties. 
This may include industry seminars 
and approved education courses.

2.3 The Board and the 
Chief Executive
The Board is responsible for the 
appointment and employment 
contract of the chief executive 
subject to obtaining the 
Minister’s approval.

Day to day oversight and 
management of operations are the 
responsibility of the chief executive 
who reports to the Board on 
issues including:

• corporate strategies;

• human resources;

• annual budgeting;

• managing day to day operations;

• risk management;

• operations and major project 
challenges and milestones; and

• strategic marketing 
and communications.



DIRECTORS’
REPORT

REMUNERATION REPORT  |  68

3.1 Audit and Risk 
Management Committee
This committee provides advice 
to the Board, which assists the 
Board to fulfil its responsibilities 
relating to risk management and 
compliance with internal systems 
and control mechanisms.  

The committee has direct access 
to external auditors, internal 
auditors and senior management.  
The committee meets regularly, 
meeting external auditors at least 
twice a year and internal auditors 
more frequently. External auditors 
are appointed in accordance with 
Schedule 3A Clause 14 of the Act.

The committee comprises three 
independent Board directors (not 
including the Board Chairperson) 
appointed by the Board. 
The committee has a charter 
setting out its responsibilities and 
key activities covering:

Financial Reporting

• Oversee financial reporting 
process on behalf of the Board 
and report the results of its 
activities to the Board.

• Assist the Board in ensuring 
that the accounting policies and 
principles used are appropriate 
and that the financial reports are 
properly prepared.

• Review significant accounting, 
taxation and reporting issues, 
including recent professional and 
regulatory pronouncements, and 
understand their impact on the 
financial statements.

Internal Audit

• Make recommendations to the 
Board regarding the appointment 
of internal auditors.

• Approve the charter for the 
internal audit function.

• Approve both short term and 
long-term internal audit plans.

• Review the activities of the 
internal audit function and ensure 
no unjustified restrictions or 
limitations are made.

• Review the effectiveness of the 
internal audit function.

• Review the performance of the 
internal auditors.

• Ensure that significant findings 
and recommendations made 
by the internal auditors are 
received by the Audit and Risk 
Management committee and 
discussed on a timely basis.

• Ensure that management responds 
to recommendations made by the 
internal auditors and agreed action 
items are addressed promptly.

External Audit

• Consider the external auditors’ 
proposed audit scope and 
approach and ensure no unjustified 
restrictions or limitations have 
been placed on the scope.

• Ensure that significant findings 
and recommendations made by 
the external auditors are received 
and discussed on a timely basis.

• Ensure that management responds 
to recommendations by the 
external auditors and agreed action 
items are addressed promptly.

3. BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has three committees 
to focus on specific areas:

•  Audit and Risk Management committee;

•  Governance and Remuneration committee; and

•  Planning, Development and  

Communications committee.

Each committee reviews 
their terms of reference 
and membership annually, 
with any proposed changes 
submitted to the Board 
for approval. Minutes of all 
committee meetings are 
provided to the next Board 
meeting. A director may 
attend committee meetings 
even if he or she is not a 
member of the committee.
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Risk management 
(including internal controls)

• Discuss with management, the 
internal auditor and the external 
auditor, the adequacy and 
effectiveness of:

 –  internal control systems;

 –  policies and procedures to 
assess, monitor, and manage 
business risk; and

 –  legal and ethical 
compliance programs.

• Assess the internal processes for 
determining and managing key 
risk areas, particularly: 

 –  compliance with laws, 
regulations, standards and best 
practice guidelines, 

 –  important judgements and 
accounting estimates; 

 –  fraud and theft; 

 –  reputational; and 

 –  relevant business risks other 
than those dealt with by other 
specific Board committees.

• Make recommendations to the 
Board for improvements (if 
any) in relation to the internal 
financial management and the 
financial controls.

• Review management policies 
and reports for the oversight 
and management of material 
business risks.

• Address the effectiveness of the 
internal control, risk management 
and performance management 
systems with management and 
the external audit providers.

• Evaluate the process for assessing 
and continuously improving 
internal controls, particularly those 
related to areas of significant risk.

• Members of the Committee 
generally do not represent 
themselves as experts in the fields 
of accounting, auditing or financial 
risk management reviews.

• Management is responsible for

 –  The preparation, presentation 
and integrity of LandCorp’s 
financial information and 
other information provided to 
the Committee;

 –  Implementing, managing 
and maintaining appropriate 
enterprise-wide accounting, 
financial reporting and financial 
risk management systems 
and internal controls that are 
designed to ensure compliance 
with applicable standards, laws 
and regulations; and

 –  Maintaining sufficient 
knowledge, skills and expertise 
within the finance function.

• The external auditor is responsible 
for planning and carrying 
out each audit and review in 
accordance with applicable 
auditing standards.

3.2 Governance and 
Remuneration committee
The Board has established this 
committee to assist the Board 
in ensuring that appropriate 
and effective policies, plans and 
practices are in place in relation to:

• corporate governance; 

• remuneration; 

• Board and Executive 
succession; and 

• Board, Committee and 
Chief Executive Officer 
performance management.

The committee comprises three 
independent Board directors 
(not including the Board 
Chairperson) appointed by the 
Board. The committee has a charter 
setting out its responsibilities and 
key activities covering:

• develop and review  corporate 
governance principles 
and framework;

• develop and review policy relating 
to remuneration of the Board, 
chief executive, management 
and other staff;

• provide quality assurance on 
the integrity and probity of 
remuneration policies and 
practices, with Executive 
remuneration – provide 
quality assurance on 
Executive remuneration, 
through annual reviews of the 
CEO’s recommendations;

• ensure appropriate succession 
planning is undertaken for the 
Board and executive;

• assist with the nomination of 
directors and with induction 
programs for new directors;

• assist with the review of the 
performance of the Board, 
the committees and the 
chief executive; and

• ensure policies are developed 
to assist with achieving business 
direction outcomes.

In accordance with the Western 
Australian Land Authority Act 
1992, disclosures relating to 
Director, Chief Executive Officer 
and Executive remuneration are 
included in the Directors’ Report.
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3.3 Planning, Development and 
Communications Committee
The Board has established this 
committee to be the decision 
making body for the Western 
Australian Land Authority’s 
statutory planning responsibilities, 
provide advice on strategic 
planning, investment and 
development which meets the 
State’s needs, and review and 
update LandCorp’s communication 
policies to ensure effective 
communication with stakeholders.

The committee comprises three 
independent Board directors (not 
including the Board Chairperson) 
appointed by the Board. The 
committee has a charter setting 
out its responsibilities and 
key activities covering:

Statutory Planning

• Make decisions in accordance 
with, and provide advice to 
the Board with regard to, the 
Authority’s statutory planning 
responsibilities as defined 
in the Hope Valley-Wattleup 
Redevelopment Act 2000 and 
Perry Lakes Redevelopment 
Act 2005;

• Perform duties and execute 
powers delegated to the 
Committee and staff by the 
Instrument of Delegation for 
the Planning, Development and 
Communications Committee 
which was adopted by the Board 
on 19 December 2006;

• Administer the Authority’s statutory 
planning responsibilities, including:

 –  Preparation of project concept 
plans, master plans and 
structure plans and variations;

 –  Redevelopment plan 
development, reviews 
and amendments;

 –  Providing statutory advice 
on planning, development 
applications, subdivision 
applications and master 
plan standards to other 
approval bodies, including 
matters referred to the State 
Administrative Tribunal;

 –  Preparation of planning and 
development policies;

 –  Administration of 
Officer delegations;

 –  Preparation and 
administration of development 
contribution plans;

 –  Consideration of landowner 
agreements; and

 –  Review of development 
guidelines.

Strategic Planning

• Contribute to the Authority’s 
strategic planning policies, 
investment decisions and 
development processes to ensure 
alignment with government 
policies and the social and 
economic needs of the State;

• Advise on strategic acquisitions 
and/or development to meet the 
State’s development needs;

• Oversee identified urban renewal 
and infill projects which meet 
Government development 
objectives, i.e. Activity Centres;

• Advise on and/or participate 
in the development of 
Regional Centres;

• Monitor the State’s residential and 
industrial/commercial land needs;

• Consider a land development 
needs analysis by geographical 
location; and

• Consider applications to the Local 
Regional Development Assistance 
Program, guide the application 
process, monitor progress, 
evaluate outcomes and present 
recommendations to the Board.

Stakeholder Management 
and Engagement

• Conduct reviews of all 
communication policies and plans 
that promote the effective two-
way communication of relevant 
information to Government and 
other stakeholders to ensure 
effective communications with 
all stakeholders is established 
and maintained;

• Identify shareholder and 
stakeholder communication issues 
and requirements;

• Ensure alignment of 
communication policies / 
strategies / plans and processes 
against Government and Board 
expectations; and

• Review procedures for 
development / management of 
key communication initiatives.
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4. BOARD MEETINGS

Board meetings are 

held at such times 

and places as the 

Board determines.

The chairperson sets the agenda  
for each meeting in consultation 
with the chief executive.  Any 
director may request to have a 
matter added to the agenda.  

Directors are provided 
comprehensive papers on matters 
to be considered by the Board.

Members of the office of the chief 
executive and other members of 
the senior management group 
attend parts of the Board meetings 
by invitation.

5. BOARD ACCESS TO 
INFORMATION AND 
PROFESSIONAL ADVICE

Directors have  

access to 

information via 

executive.

The directors, Board and the 
committees may, in carrying out 
their duties, seek external legal 
and expert advice at LandCorp’s 
expense. This advice may be 
sought after consultation with 
the Chairperson.  

6. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The Board chairperson 

is responsible for 

reviewing Board 

performance, 

monitoring the 

contribution of 

individual directors 

and counselling them 

on any areas which 

may result in improved 

Board performance.

Each committee reviews its 
performance annually against 
its chartered roles which is then 
reported to the Governance and 
Remuneration committee.

The performance evaluation of the 
chief executive is undertaken by the 
Board though the chairperson. A 
performance agreement and targets 
are set and reviews are undertaken 
a minimum of twice annually.

The performance evaluation of 
executive is undertaken by the 
chief executive. A performance 
agreement and targets are set and 
reviews are undertaken a minimum 
of twice annually.

LandCorp has a strong culture 
of achievement via performance 
agreements for all staff which clarify 
roles and responsibilities, goals 
and targets (aligned to the annual 
business plan) as well as specific 
development plans.

7. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

A Conflict of Interest policy 
is in place detailing how such 
matters are to be managed.  This 
policy accords with standards 
set by the Western Australian 
Public Sector Commissioner.

New directors appointed to the 
Board are required to declare 
financial and pecuniary interests 
at their first meeting.  A standing 
protocol dictates where a director 
would disclose an interest in 
any item on the Board meeting 
agenda.  Disclosures are recorded 
in the meeting minutes, with 
a copy placed into a Conflicts 
of Interest register.

Any director who considers he 
or she has a conflict of interest is 
required to give other directors 
immediate notice.  These interests 
are recorded in the Conflict of 
Interest register.

Where a director makes a 
declaration of a conflict, the Board 
may either allow the director to 
partially participate in discussion of 
the agenda item; make a statement 
to the Board, prior to leaving the 
meeting room; or the Board may 
request the director leave the 
meeting immediately.

The Conflict of Interest policy also 
applies to staff and contractors 
who, when conflicted, are required 
to make a formal disclosure to the 
chief executive who determines the 
management action required. 
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8. ETHICAL STANDARDS

The Board is required to establish 
minimum standards to apply to 
employees, management and the 
Board of directors with regard to 
merit, equity and probity, which 
is reflected in a Code of Conduct 
(Code) developed in consultation 
with the Commissioner of Public 
Sector Standards.

The Code provides guidance on 
a set of principles that reflects 
its approach to business and 
applies to anyone working for, or 
on behalf of, LandCorp including 
Board, executive, staff and 
contractors. The Code is part of 
the orientation process, available 
to staff at all times via the intranet 
and document management 
systems and supported by training 
and awareness-raising sessions. 

A series of policies and protocols 
are maintained to strengthen and 
affirm the approach to corporate 
governance. These address 
the key areas of:

• values and ethics;

• trade practices;

• procurement and tendering;

• gifts;

• occupational health and safety;

• equal employment opportunity;

• continuous disclosure of 
conflicts of interest; and

• personal duties and 
responsibilities.

As part of a regular review 
process, the Governance and 
Remuneration Committee 
reviewed the Code in August 2014.

9. SHAREHOLDER

The Minister for Lands has portfolio 

responsibility. 

9.1 Ministerial Reporting
LandCorp governing legislation 
sets out reports which are to be 
provided to the Minister.

The governing legislation and 
regulations prescribes the 
matters to be addressed in the 
Strategic Development Plan and 
Statement of Corporate Intent. 
These documents provide the 
Minister with details on activities, 
key objectives, strategies 
and operational targets. Both 
documents are submitted 
annually for approval by the 
Minister, with the consent of 
the Treasurer. The Statement of 
Corporate Intent is tabled in the 
Parliament annually by the Minister. 
All documents were submitted to 
the Minister within the timeframes 
prescribed in the Western 
Australian Land Authority Act 1992.

Beyond the legislative 
requirements there is a 
commitment to ensuring the 
Government is fully informed 
on significant activities and 
developments. This commitment 
is achieved by provision of 
information and advice to the 
Minister for Lands, as well as 
agencies such as the Department 
of Treasury and Department 
of  Finance.

Information provided includes, 
but is not limited to, annual 
reports, half year reports, budget 
submissions as well as responses to 
specific requests from Parliament, 
Members of Parliament, agencies 
and the public.

9.2 Ministerial direction
The Minister may give directions 
in writing to the Board of directors 
with respect to the performance 
of the functions prescribed under 
the legislation. Any such directions 
must be laid before both houses of 
parliament within 14 days.

The Board has maintained a policy 
with respect to responding to 
Ministerial direction. This policy 
enables the Board to comply 
with the Western Australian 
Land Authority Act 1992 and 
Statutory Corporations (Liability of 
Directors) Act 1996. 

No Ministerial directions were 
received from the Minister during 
the reporting period.

9.3 Ministerial approvals
The Western Australian Land 
Authority Act 1992 requires we 
obtain the Minister’s approval 
for transactions in which the 
consideration is equal to or 
exceeds five percent of the value 
of total reported assets as set out 
in the most recent annual report. 
There have been three transactions 
approved by the Minister in 
2014/15.
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Everyone at LandCorp has 
a responsibility to be aware 
of the risks related to their 
activities and to be accountable 
for ensuring those risks are 
effectively maintained.

LandCorp has developed a 
Risk Management Framework 
which outlines the methodology, 
approach and responsibility 
for the effective management 
and oversight of risk within 
our business. The Framework 
is aligned to ISO 31000:2009 
Risk Management Principles 
and Guidelines, the international 
standard for risk management 
and provides a consistent 
approach to the recognition, 
measurement and evaluation of 
risks across our business. 

It also supports Executive 
Management and the Board 
in meeting their corporate 
governance responsibilities.

The primary focus of LandCorp’s 
risk management governance 
structure and internal control 
systems is to identify, assess and 
mitigate material business risks 
with the aim of enhancing value 
to our shareholder and protecting 
assets.  The Board has delegated 
the responsibility for oversight of 
risk management to the Audit and 
Risk Management Committee.

The role of the Committee is to 
assist the Board in its oversight 
responsibilities related to financial 
management and reporting, 
external audit, internal audit and 
risk management of LandCorp. 
The Committee monitors 
enterprise risk management 
activity incorporating its impact 
on mitigating material risks to 
the business through oversight 
of the Corporate Risk Register 
and the Risk Management 
Framework which are tabled bi-
annually to the Committee and 
the Board. Quarterly dashboards 
are also provided to the 
Committee and Board.

Our approach to risk management is underpinned 

by our corporate values and culture. 

This emphasises that management, employees 

and contractors are collectively responsible for 

managing all material business risks and there 

should be a clear understanding of responsibility 

and accountability for risk management.

10. RISK MANAGEMENT
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11. CORPORATE COMPLIANCE 
DISCLOSURES

11.1 Freedom of Information
The provisions of the Freedom 
of Information (FOI) Act 1992 
apply and nine FOI applications 
were received and processed in 
this reporting period. We work 
with applicants to facilitate full 
disclosure of documents where 
appropriate. Eight enquiries for 
third party consultations from 
other government agencies 
were also received. 

An Information Statement in 
accordance with the FOI Act, 
providing information about 
LandCorp and how to make an 
FOI request is available at  
www.landcorp.com.au 

11.2 Record keeping compliance
Quality record keeping practices 
are supported in day-to-day 
business activities. An approved 
recordkeeping plan, in accordance 
with Section 19 of the State Records 
Act 2000, is maintained.

11.3 Public interest disclosure 
The Public Interest Disclosures Act 
2003 facilitates the disclosure of 
public interest information and 
provides protection for those who 
make disclosures and those who are 
the subject of disclosures.

A public interest disclosure officer 
complies with internal procedures 
developed which outline the 
manner we comply with obligations 
under the Act.

No disclosures were received this year.

11.4 Environmental regulation 
and management 

Day-to-day operations are 
subject to regulation under 
both Commonwealth and State 
environmental legislation applicable 
to any Australian commercial entity.  
These include:

• Wildlife Conservation Act 
(WA) 1950

• Environment Protection and 
Biodiversity Conservation Act 
(Commonwealth) 1999;

• Environmental Protection Act 
(WA) 1986; 

• Contaminated Sites Act 
(WA) 2003

ADVERTISING $1,266,666
–  The Brand Agency

DIRECT MAIL $0

POLLING $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURE $2,403,396

MEDIA ADVERTISING $890,437
–  Adcorp Australia Limited/Carat Australia Media 

Services Pty Ltd

MARKET RESEARCH $246,293
–  Bis Shrapnel Pty
–  Neilsen Media 
–  Research 4 Pty Ltd
–  Clever Stuff Market Research Pty Ltd
–  West Coast Field 
–  Painted Dog Research
–  Systems Edge Management Metrix Consulting Pty Ltd
–  Roy Morgan Research Ltd
–  Jones Land Lasalle (Nsw) Pty Ltd
–  Colliers International
–  Urbis Pty Ltd

11.5 Reportable expenditure
The Electoral Act 1907 (Section 175 ZE) requires the disclosure of certain 
categories of expenditure. Details of the organisations contracted and the 
amounts paid for the financial year are as follows:
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12. DIVERSITY AND EQUITY

Diversity and equal 
employment opportunity (EEO) 
are promoted in the workplace. 
To achieve this, policies are 
in place to create awareness 
and eliminate discrimination 
and harassment, particularly 
on grounds covered by 
EEO legislation. 

An EEO management plan 
includes strategies to promote 
equality of opportunity for all 
employees and prospective 
employees. This includes targets 
for various diversity groups, 
including Aboriginal Australians, 
people with disabilities and 
women in management. 
These targets are monitored and 
reported to the Board.

13. COMMITMENT TO 
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY 
AND HEALTH AND INJURY 
MANAGEMENT

The health, safety and wellbeing 
of staff is essential to the success 
and sustainability of the business. 
A workplace culture where health 
and safety are fundamental 
aspects of our day-to-day business 
practice is promoted. 

Success factors include:

1. Comply with all applicable 
legislations, regulations, 
Government approvals, licence 
conditions, standards AS/NZ 
4801:2001 and codes of practice. 

2. Define the critical elements 
and requirements to identify, 
eliminate and minimise health and 
safety risks and hazards, so as to 
provide a safe work environment. 

3. For our employees and 
visitors, demonstrate health 
and safety leadership by 
developing a culture which 
supports compliance, 
reporting and distribution 
of health and safety 
material to enhance the 
focus on prevention.

4. For our external 
stakeholders, communicate, 
consult and engage with 
our clients, contractors, 
consultants, the community 
and all other parties on health 
and safety matters to improve 
safety culture, compliance 
and performance. 

5. Ensure appropriate information, 
training and supervision 
are maintained. 

6. Record and investigate 
incidents  and non 
compliances within our 
operations and implement 
actions or programs for 
future prevention.

7. Review and improve our 
Occupational Safety and 
Health management 
systems so that we 
deliver a measurable high 
standard of health and 
safety performance. 

8. Drive the continued 
improvement process by 
establishing measurable 
objectives and targets. 

9. Guide and support our 
employees and management 
team with an effective system  
of rehabilitation and return to 
work for injured employees. 

The following table summarises targets and respective outcomes 
as at 30 June 2015.

*Women in management is the percentage of females in the senior leadership group

LandCorp Target 
2014-15 %

LandCorp Actual 
@30/6/15 %

Women in management* (%) 32.5 32.1

Aboriginal Australians (%) 3.0 1.9

People with disabilities (%) 3.0 4.2
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13.1 Occupational Safety and 
Health Consultation

An orientation 

process which 

encompasses 

occupational safety 

and health matters is 

in place.  Employees 

must all undertake 

compulsory 

occupational 

health and safety 

training and pass 

an assessment at 

completion. 

Contractors are provided with an 
overview of policy and procedures, 
which outline our commitment to 
the safety, health and wellbeing 
of all personnel. 

We encourage employees to 
discuss occupational safety 
and health issues with the 
Occupational Safety and Health 
Manager for consideration and 
remediation if required. The safety 
committee meets quarterly to 
discuss health and safety issues. It 
consists of representatives from all 
divisions as well as managers and 
a general manager.

13.2  Statement of Compliance 
to Injury Management
A commitment is in place to 
provide injury management 
support to all workers who sustain 
a work related injury or illness with 
a focus on safe and early return to 
meaningful work and in accordance 
with the Worker’s Compensation 
and Injury Management Act 1981.

13.3 Occupational Safety and 
Health Management Systems
An Occupational Safety and 
Health Management System is 
monitored and audited on a cyclical 
basis. Internal audits from KPMG 
reviewed the system process 
in December 2012 and again in 
May 2014. Practices and systems 
were reviewed in July 2014 by 
Work Safe auditors.

A Procedures Manual contains 
comprehensive occupational safety 
and health processes for use by 
all operational staff who must 
comply with company policy and 
ensure our staff and contractors 
implement health and safety 
management practices for all site-
based and external projects.

Incidents are reported to 
management within 24 hours and 
escalated in accordance with risk 
categories. Safety reports are 
reviewed by executive monthly and 
the operational division managers 
group weekly. The Board receives 
immediate notification of all 
category five incidents.
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13.4 2014-15 Performance

MEASURE 2012-13 2014-15 TARGET COMMENT

Number of fatalities 0 0 0 Nil

Lost time injury and/or 
disease incidence rate 

0 0 0 Nil

Lost time injury and/or 
disease severity rate 

0 0 0 Nil

Percentage of injured 
workers returned to work: 

(i) within 13 weeks 

(ii) within 26 weeks 

 

0

0

 

0

0

 

N/A

100

 
NA

Percentage of managers 
trained in occupational 
safety, health and 
injury management 
responsibilities

50 100 100 Development Managers are provided with more 
in-depth training to enable them to fulfil their roles.

All project-related personnel are required to hold 
a Construction Induction Card (White Card), 
to indicate these employees possess sufficient 
safety awareness for attendance on construction 
sites. 71% of employees hold a valid White Card, 
representing 100% of project-related staff.

In 2015 LandCorps Senior Development Managers 
undertook a Frontline Leadership course which 
contained a significant OSH component.

After receiving an inaugural Silver 
Worksafe Accreditation in June 2014, 
an audit of LandCorp’s OSH systems 
using the WorkSafe Plan was completed 
again in June 2015. The WorkSafe Plan 
provides a systematic way of measuring 
organisations safety systems and how 
they are managed. The results across 
the five elements were:

Gold Certificates are only awarded 
to organisations demonstrating 
excellent progress toward a best 
practice approach to safety and health 
management. LandCorp is one of only 
seven Government organisations to 
receive a Gold Worksafe Accreditation 
over the last five years. The Gold 
certification lasts for two years and 
LandCorp will work towards elevating 
its certification to Platinum Worksafe 
Accreditation in late 2016.

0
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%
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The assessor has notified WorkSafe 

WA of the below scores and 

requested it issue a Gold Certificate 

of Achievement to LandCorp.
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Directors’ declaration

for the year ended 30 June 2015

The Directors declare that:

a) in the Directors’ opinion, the attached financial statements and notes thereto 
are in accordance with the Western Australian Land Authority Act 1992, 
including compliance with Australian Accounting Standards and giving a 
true and fair view of the financial position and performance of the Western 
Australian Land Authority (LandCorp); and

b) in the Directors’ opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that 
LandCorp will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and 
payable.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors made pursuant to 
Western Australian Land Authority Act 1992.

On behalf of the Directors

Monty House     Simon Read 
Chairman     Director

24 August 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
 
To the Parliament of Western Australia 
 
WESTERN AUSTRALIAN LAND AUTHORITY 
 
I have audited the financial report of the Western Australian Land Authority. The financial report 
comprises the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2015, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash 
Flows for the year then ended, Notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information, and the Director’s Declaration. 
 
Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report 
The directors of the Western Australian Land Authority are responsible for the preparation of the 
financial report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards and the Western Australian Land Authority Act 1992, and for such internal control as 
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
As required by the Western Australian Land Authority Act 1992, my responsibility is to express 
an opinion on the financial report based on my audit. The audit was conducted in accordance 
with Australian Auditing Standards. Those Standards require compliance with relevant ethical 
requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material 
misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the Authority’s preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial report. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 
 
Independence 
In conducting this audit, I have complied with the independence requirements of the Auditor 
General Act 2006 and Australian Auditing Standards, and other relevant ethical requirements. 
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Opinion 
In my opinion, the financial report of the Western Australian Land Authority is in accordance with 
schedule 3A of the Western Australian Land Authority Act 1992, including: 
 (a) giving a true and fair view of the Authority’s  financial position as at 30 June 2015 and 

of its performance for the year ended on that date; and 
 (b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 

2001. 
 
Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Report  
This auditor’s report relates to the financial report of the Western Australian Land Authority for 
the year ended 30 June 2015 included on the Authority’s website. The Authority’s management 
is responsible for the integrity of the Authority’s website. This audit does not provide assurance 
on the integrity of the Authority’s website. The auditor’s report refers only to the financial report 
described above. It does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been 
hyperlinked to/from this financial report. If users of the financial report are concerned with the 
inherent risks arising from publication on a website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy of 
the audited financial report to confirm the information contained in this website version of the 
financial report. 
 

 
COLIN MURPHY 
AUDITOR GENERAL 
FOR WESTERN AUSTRALIA 
Perth, Western Australia 
27 August 2015 
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2015 2014

Note $'000 $'000

Continuing Operations

Operating revenue 2(a)  505,781  514,888 

Operating expenses 2(b)  (352,383)  (369,732)

Gross Profit  153,398  145,156 

Other revenue 2(a)  14,769  25,039 

Estate holding expenses  (47,970)  (51,309)

Employee benefit expenses  (26,202)  (26,293)

Consultant expenses  (3,574)  (3,521)

Advertising, public relations and sponsorship  (7,179)  (7,378)

Other expenses 2(b)  (22,299)  (21,773)

Results from operating activities  60,943  59,921 

Finance income 2(a)  1,643  2,146 

Finance costs  (5,024)  (7,654)

Net finance costs  (3,381)  (5,508)

Profit before income tax  57,562  54,413 

Income tax expense 3  (17,271)  (16,320)

Profit for the period  40,291  38,093 

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit 

or loss:

Defined benefit plan actuarial gains (losses)  -    -   

Income tax on other comprehensive income 3  -    -   

  Other comprehensive costs for the period, net of

  income tax
 -    -   

Total comprehensive income for the period  40,291  38,093 

The Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Statement of profit or loss and other  
comprehensive income

for the year ended 30 June 2015
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Statement of financial position

as at 30 June 2015

2015 2014

Note $'000 $'000
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 16(a)  4,012  19,885 

Receivables 4  28,005  85,714 

Inventories 5  444,217  385,123 

Other financial assets 6  29,027  15,000 

Other assets 10  42,710  34,612 

Total current assets  547,971  540,334 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Receivables 4  19,817  24,871 

Inventories 5  308,046  322,911 

Property, plant and equipment 7  286,395  286,271 

Intangibles 8  3,907  6,281 

Deferred tax assets 9  25,683  27,480 

Other assets 10  30,488  26,604 

Total non-current assets  674,336  694,418

TOTAL ASSETS  1,222,307  1,234,752 

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Payables 11  94,110  69,031 

Loans and borrowings 16(c)  125,522  159,953 

Current tax liabilities 12  9,422  8,317 

Provisions 13  5,201  5,324 

Other liabilities 14  5,904  27,825 

Total current liabilities  240,159  270,450 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions 13  1,921  1,662 
Other liabilities 14  32,947  33,329 
Total non-current liabilities  34,868  34,991 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  275,027  305,441 

NET ASSETS  947,280  929,311 

EQUITY
Contributed equity 15  395,542  385,422 
Retained profits  551,738  543,889 

TOTAL EQUITY  947,280 929,311 

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - FINANCIAL POSITION  |  83



$’000 $'000 $'000
Contributed 

Equity
Retained  

Profits  Total 

Balance at 1 July 2013  385,422  537,742  923,164 

Total comprehensive income for the period

Profit or loss  -  38,093  38,093 

Other comprehensive income  - 

Defined benefit plan actuarial gains (losses) net of tax  -  -  - 

Total other comprehensive income  -  -  - 

Total comprehensive income for the period  -  38,093  38,093 

Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity

Dividends (note 23)  -  (31,946)  (31,946)

Distributions to owners (note 15)  -  -  - 

Contributions of equity (note 15)  -  -  - 

Balance at 30 June 2014  385,422  543,889  929,311 

Balance at 1 July 2014  385,422  543,889  929,311 

Total comprehensive income for the period

Profit or loss  -  40,291  40,291 

Other comprehensive income  - 

Defined benefit plan actuarial gains (losses) net of tax  -  -  - 

Total other comprehensive income  -  -  - 

Total comprehensive income for the period  -  40,291  40,291 

Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity   

Dividends (note 23)  -  (32,442)  (32,442)

Distributions to owners (note 15)  -  -  - 

Contributions of equity (note 15)  10,120  -  10,120 

Balance at 30 June 2015  395,542  551,738  947,280 

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 30 June 2015
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for the year ended 30 June 2015

Statement of cash flows

2015 2014

Note $'000 $'000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers  564,378  518,377 

Operating subsidies received  103,640  86,849 

Payments to suppliers and employees  (584,610)  (484,215)

Interest received  2,014  1,789 

Interest paid  (4,850)  (8,393)

Income tax paid  (14,369)  (20,431)

Net cash from operating activities 16(b)  66,203  93,976 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for investments  (103,013)  (324,491)

Proceeds on sale of investments  88,986  319,491 

Payments for property, plant and equipment  (11,490)  (8,329)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  194  9,095 

Net cash used in investing activities  (25,323)  (4,234)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from equity contribution  10,120  - 

Proceeds from borrowings  127,567  150,624 

Repayment of borrowings  (161,998)  (216,624)

Payment of dividend  (32,442)  (31,946)

Net cash from financing activities  (56,753)  (97,946)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  (15,873)  (8,204)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July  19,885  28,089 

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 16(a)  4,012 19,885 

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 30 June 2015

Western Australian Land Authority 
(LandCorp) is the Western Australian 
Government’s land and property 
development agency with its office 
and principal place of business as 
follows:

Level 6 Wesfarmers House
40 The Esplanade
PERTH, WA 6000

LandCorp is a not-for-profit entity 
that is controlled by the State 
Government of Western Australia.

Note 1 Summary of significant 
accounting policies

The following accounting policies 
have been adopted in the preparation 
of the financial statements.  Unless 
otherwise stated these policies are 
consistent with those adopted in the 
previous year.

The financial statements were 
authorised for issue by the Directors 
on 24 August 2015.

a) Basis of preparation
The financial statements 
constitute a general purpose 
financial report which has 
been prepared in accordance 
with the Western Australian 
Land Authority Act 1992, 
Australian Accounting Standards 
(AASBs) (including Australian 
Interpretations) adopted by the 
Australian Accounting Standards 
Board (AASB) except for AASB 
8 Operating Segments, AASB 
120 Accounting for Government 
Grants and Disclosure of 
Government Assistance and AASB 
124 Related Party Disclosures 
(which are not applicable to not-
for-profit entities).

The statements have been 
prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting using the historical 
cost convention.  Accounting 
policies have been applied in 

a manner which ensures the 
resulting financial information 
satisfies the concepts of relevance 
and reliability.

Fair value is the price that would 
be received to sell an asset or paid 
to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market 
participants at the measurement 
date, regardless of whether that 
price is directly observable or 
estimated using another valuation 
technique. 

In estimating the fair value of an 
asset or a liability, LandCorp takes 
into account the characteristics 
of the asset or liability if market 
participants would take those 
characteristics into account when 
pricing the asset or liability at the 
measurement date. 

Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these 
financial statements is determined 
on such a basis, except for 
leasing transactions that are 
within the scope of AASB 117, and 
measurements that have some 
similarities to fair value but are not 
fair value, such as net realisable 
value in AASB 2 or value in use in 
AASB 136.

b) Functional and presentation 
currency
The financial statements are 
presented in Australian dollars, 
which is both the functional 
and presentation currency of 
LandCorp.

c) Use of estimates and 
judgements
The preparation of financial 
statements in conformity with 
Australian Accounting Standards 
requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the 
application of accounting policies 

and the reported amounts of 
assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses.  Actual results may 
differ from the estimates. 

Estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on 
an ongoing basis. Revisions 
to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which 
the estimate is revised and in 
any future periods affected.  
In particular, information 
about significant areas of 
estimation uncertainty and 
critical judgements in applying 
accounting policies that have the 
most significant effect on the 
amount recognised in the financial 
statements are described in the 
following notes:

• Note 4 Receivables, with 
reference to Note 19 Financial 
instruments

• Note 5 Inventories
• Note 13 Provisions, with 

reference to Note 17 Employee 
benefits

• Note 18 Commitments, with 
reference to Note 24 Leasing 
arrangements

d) Application of new and 
revised Accounting 
Standards

i) Standards and Interpretations 
affecting amounts reported in 
the current period (and/or prior 
periods)

In the current year, LandCorp 
has applied a number of new 
and revised AASBs issued by 
the Australian Accounting 
Standards Board (AASB) that 
are mandatorily effective for an 
accounting period that begins 
on or after 1 January 2014. These 
Standards and Interpretations 
did not have a material impact 
on the financial statements or 
performance of LandCorp. 
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Standard/Interpretation Effective for annual reporting 
periods beginning on or after

Expected to be initially applied 
in the financial year ending

AASB 9 Financial Instruments and the relevant 
amending standards

1 January 2018 30 June 2019

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
and AASB 2014-5 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 15

1 January 2017 30 June 2018

AASB 2014 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards - Accounting for Interests in Joint 
Ventures

1 January 2016 30 June 2017

AASB 2014-4 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards Clarification of Acceptable 
Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

1 January 2016 30 June 2017

AASB 2014-9 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards Equity Method in Separate 
Financial Statements

1 January 2016 30 June 2017

AASB 2014-10 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards Sale or Contribution of 
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or 
Joint Venture

1 January 2016 30 June 2017

AASB 2015-1 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards Annual Improvements to 
Australian Accounting Standards 2012-2014 Cycle

1 January 2016 30 June 2017

AASB 2015-2 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards Disclosure Initiative: 
Amendments to AASB 101

1 January 2016 30 June 2017

AASB 2015-3 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards Arising from the Withdrawal 
of AASB 1031 Materiality

1 July 2015 30 June 2016

At the date of publication there have been no IASB Standards and IFRIC Interpretations that are issued but not yet 
effective.

AASB 2012-3 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standards 
– offsetting Financial Assets and 
Financial Liabilities.

AASB 2013-3 Amendments to 
AASB 136- Recoverable Amount 
Disclosures for Non- Financial 
Assets.

AASB 2014-1 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting (Part A: 
Annual improvements 2010-2012 
and 2011-2013 Cycles).

AASB 1031 Materiality, AASB 
2013-9 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standards- 
Conceptual Framework, Materiality 
and Financial Instruments (Part B: 
Materiality), AASB 2014-1
Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards (Part C: 
Materiality).

Note 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  |  87

ii) Standards and Interpretations in issue not yet adopted

At the date of authorisation of the financial statements, the Standards and Interpretations listed below were in issue but 
not yet effective:



Note 1 Summary of significant 
accounting policies (cont’d)

e) Payables

 Payables, including accruals not 
yet billed, are recognised when 
LandCorp becomes obliged 
to make future payments as a 
result of a purchase of assets or 
services.  Payables are generally 
settled within 30 days.  Payables 
are measured initially at fair value 
and subsequently at amortised 
cost using the effective interest 
method.

f) Property, plant and 
equipment

(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and 
equipment are stated at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses. Cost includes 
expenditure that is directly 
attributable to the acquisition of 
the asset.

An item of property, plant and 
equipment may be gifted or 
contributed to LandCorp. Under 
these circumstances the deemed 
cost of the item is its fair value 
as at the date it was gifted or 
contributed.

(ii) Subsequent costs

The costs of replacing part of 
an item of property, plant and 
equipment is recognised in the 
carrying amount of the item if it is 
probable that the future economic 
benefits embodied within the 
part will flow to LandCorp and 
the cost can be measured reliably.  
The carrying amount of the 
replaced part is derecognised.  
The costs of day-to-day servicing 
of property, plant and equipment 
are recognised in profit or loss as 
incurred.

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost 
of an asset less its residual value.  

Property, plant and equipment 
having a limited useful life are 
systematically depreciated over 
their useful lives in a manner 
which reflects the consumption 
of their future economic benefits.  
No depreciation is charged on 
freehold land.  Depreciation is 
provided for on the straight 
line basis so as to write off the 
net cost of each asset over 
its expected useful life to its 
estimated residual value using 
rates which are reviewed annually. 

The following estimated useful 
lives are used in the calculation 
of depreciation for each class of 
depreciable asset unless another 
method provides a better estimate 
of useful life: 

Buildings 25 - 40 years

Furniture & Office
Equipment 4 - 10 years

Computer Equipment 3 years

Leasehold
Improvements  3 years

Plant & Equipment 10 years

Infrastructure 22 years

The assets’ residual values and 
useful lives are reviewed, and 
adjusted if appropriate, at each 
balance sheet date.

Items of property, plant and 
equipment costing less than 
$1,000 are expensed in the year 
of acquisition (other than where 
they form part of a group of similar 
items which are significant in total). 

Capital Works in Progress 
includes expenditure on assets 
which are under construction 
but not substantially complete at 
reporting date.

g) Intangible assets

Computer software has a limited 
useful life and is carried at cost 
less accumulated amortisation 
and impairment.  Amortisation 
is charged on a straight line 

basis over an estimated useful 
life of four years, which is 
reviewed annually, with the 
effect of any changes in estimate 
being accounted for on a 
prospective basis.

h) Employee benefits

(i) Wages, salaries, annual leave 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, 
including non-monetary benefits, 
and annual leave expected to be 
settled within 12 months of the 
reporting date are recognised in 
provision for employees benefits 
in respect of employees’ services 
up to the reporting date. They 
are calculated at undiscounted 
amounts based on the wage 
and salary rates that LandCorp 
expects to pay as at reporting 
date including related on-costs 
such as workers compensation 
insurance and payroll tax. Non-
accumulating non-monetary 
benefits such as medical care and 
cars are expensed based on the 
net marginal cost to LandCorp 
as the benefits are taken by 
employees.

(ii) Long service and annual leave

The liability for long service leave 
is recognised in the provision for 
employee benefits and measured 
as the present value of expected 
future payments to be made 
in respect of services provided 
by the employees up to the 
reporting date plus related on-
costs. Consideration is given to 
expected future wage and salary 
levels, experience of employee 
departures, and periods of service. 

Annual leave expected to be 
settled more than 12 months after 
the reporting date is measured as 
the present value of the expected 
future payments, adjusted for 
future wage and salary levels, and 
are recognised in the provision for 
employee benefits.
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Note 1 Summary of significant 
accounting policies (cont’d)

h) Employee benefits (cont’d)

Expected future payments are 
discounted using a discount rate 
of 2.74% pa which was based on 
the Commonwealth Government 
bond rate at 30 June 2015 (2014: 
3.69% pa). The method used is 
the actuarial cost method. Any 
actuarial gains or losses are 
recognised in profit or loss in the 
period in which they arise.

The last actuarial assessment of 
long service leave was performed 
in July 2015 in respect of the 
year ended 30 June 2015. An 
assessment is carried out on an 
annual basis and will provide the 
basis for the liability reported.

(iii) Superannuation

• Defined contribution 
superannuation funds:

Obligations for contributions 
to defined contribution 
superannuation funds are       
recognised as an expense in profit 
or loss when they are due.

• Defined benefit superannuation 
funds:

LandCorp does not have any 
defined benefit superannuation 
scheme.  Certain employees of 
LandCorp are members of the 
Gold State Super which is a state 
plan funded by contributions 
from employers and LandCorp 
does not have any legal liability 
to cover any deficit arising from 
this scheme.  However, certain 
employees of LandCorp who were 
former members of a pension 
scheme had transferred to Gold 
State Super prior to its closure.  
In respect of their transferred 
benefits these members receive 
a lump sum benefit at retirement, 
death or invalidity which is 
related to their salary during their 
employment and indexed during 
any deferral period after leaving 
public sector employment. 

The pre-transfer service benefits 
(which is unfunded) of these 
employees who transferred to 
the Gold State Super remains 
the liability of LandCorp and is 
determined by actuarial valuations 
carried out at each reporting date.  
Actuarial gains and losses are 
recognised in full in the Statement 
of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income in the 
period which they occur.

i) Contributed equity

Capital contributions have been 
designated as contributions 
by owners and have been 
credited directly to Contributed 
Equity in the Statement of 
Financial Position only when 
such contributions have been 
designated by the Department of 
Treasury as a contribution by the 
owner at the time of or prior to 
the transfer.

j) Foreign currency

All foreign currency transactions 
during the year are brought to 
account using the exchange 
rate in effect at the date of the 
transaction.  Foreign currency 
monetary items at reporting date 
are translated at the exchange rate 
existing at that date.  Exchange 
differences are recognised in profit 
or loss in the period in which they 
arise.

k) Goods and services tax

Revenues, expenses and assets 
are recognised net of the amount 
of goods and services tax (GST), 
except:

• where the amount of GST 
incurred is not recoverable 
from the taxation authority, 
it is recognised as part of 
the cost of acquisition of an 
asset or as part of an item of 
expense; or

• for receivables and payables 
which are recognised inclusive 
of GST.

The net amount of GST 
recoverable from, or payable to, 
the taxation authority is included 
as part of receivables or payables.

Cash flows are included in the 
cash flow statement on a gross 
basis. The GST component of 
cash flows arising from investing 
and financing activities which is 
recoverable from, or payable to, 
the taxation authority is classified 
as operating cash flows.

l) Income tax

LandCorp entered into the 
National Tax Equivalent Regime 
(NTER) in 2001/02 whereby an 
equivalent amount in respect 
of income tax is payable to the 
Department of Treasury.  The 
calculation of the liability in 
respect of income tax is governed 
by NTER guidelines agreed by the 
State Government.  The NTER is 
administered by the Australian 
Taxation Office.

As a consequence of participation 
in the NTER, LandCorp is required 
to comply with Accounting 
Standard AASB 112 Income Taxes.

(i) Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax 
payable or receivable on the 
taxable income or loss for the 
year, using tax rates enacted 
or subsequently enacted at 
the reporting date, and any 
adjustment to tax payable 
in respect of previous years.   
Current tax is calculated by 
reference to the amount of income 
taxes payable or recoverable 
in respect of the taxable profit 
or loss for the period.  It is 
calculated using tax rates and tax 
laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by reporting 
date.  Current tax for current and 
prior periods is recognised as a 
liability (or asset) to the extent it is 
unpaid (or refundable).
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Note 1 Summary of significant 
accounting policies (cont’d)

l) Income tax (cont’d)

(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is accounted for 
using the balance sheet liability 
method.  Deferred tax assets 
and liabilities are recognised for 
temporary differences at the tax 
rates expected to apply when the 
assets are recovered or liabilities 
are settled.  

The relevant tax rates are 
applied to the cumulative 
amounts of deductible and 
taxable temporary differences to 
measure the deferred tax asset 
or liability.  Deferred tax assets 
and liabilities are not recognised 
if the temporary differences 
giving rise to them arise from the 
initial recognition of assets and 
liabilities (other than as a result 
of a business combination) which 
affects neither taxable income nor 
accounting profit.  Furthermore, 
a deferred tax liability is not 
recognised in relation to taxable 
temporary differences arising from 
the recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised 
for deductible temporary 
differences only if it is probable 
that future taxable amounts 
will be available to utilise those 
temporary differences.

In determining the amount 
of current and deferred tax 
LandCorp takes into account the 
impact of uncertain tax positions 
and whether additional taxes and 
interest may be due.  LandCorp 
believes that its accruals for tax 
liabilities are adequate for all open 
tax years based on its assessment 
of many factors, including 
interpretations of tax law and prior 
experience.  This assessment relies 
on estimates and assumptions 
and may involve a series of 
judgements about future events.  

New information may become 
available that causes LandCorp to 
change its judgement regarding 
the adequacy of existing tax 
liabilities; such changes to 
tax liabilities will impact tax 
expense in the period that such a 
determination is made. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are offset if there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset 
current tax liabilities and assets, 
and they relate to income taxes 
levied by the same tax authority 
on the same taxable entity, or 
on different tax entities, but 
they intend to settle current tax 
liabilities and assets on a basis or 
their tax assets and liabilities will 
be realised simultaneously.

m) Inventory – land held for sale

Land held for sale comprising 
development properties are 
carried at the lower of cost or 
net realisable value (based on 
undiscounted cash flows).  Cost 
includes the cost of acquisition 
and development.  Amounts are 
disclosed as current where it 
is anticipated that land will be 
developed ready for sale within 
twelve months after reporting 
date.  Net realisable value 
represents the estimated selling 
price less all estimated costs of 
completion and costs necessary to 
make the sale.

n) Unincorporated joint venture 
operations

A joint operation is a joint 
arrangement whereby the 
parties that have joint control 
of the arrangement have rights 
to the assets, and obligations 
for the liabilities, relating to the 
arrangement. Joint control is the 
contractually agreed sharing of 
control of an arrangement, which 
exists only when decisions about 
the relevant activities require 
unanimous consent of the parties 
sharing control.

LandCorp’s interest in 
unincorporated joint ventures 
(classified as jointly controlled 
operations) are brought to 
account by recognising in its 
financial statements the assets 
it controls, the liabilities that it 
incurs, the expenses it incurs and 
its share of income that it earns 
from sale of goods by the joint 
operations.

o) Joint venture entities

A joint venture is a joint 
arrangement whereby the 
parties that have joint control 
of the arrangement have rights 
to the net assets of the joint 
arrangement. Joint control is the 
contractually agreed sharing of 
control of an arrangement, which 
exists only when decisions about 
the relevant activities require 
unanimous consent of the parties 
sharing control.

LandCorp’s interest in joint 
venture entities over whose 
activities LandCorp has joint 
control, established by contractual 
agreement and requiring 
unanimous consent for strategic 
financial and operating decisions, 
are accounted for using the 
equity method.  Joint venture 
arrangements have ceased this 
financial year.

p) Lease arrangements

Leases are classified at their 
inception as either operating 
or finance leases based on the 
economic substance of the 
agreement so as to reflect the 
risks and benefits incidental to 
ownership. 

Leases in terms of which 
LandCorp (as a lessee) assumes 
substantially all of the risks 
and rewards of ownership are 
classified as finance leases.  Upon 
initial recognition, the leased asset 
is measured at an amount equal to
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Note 1 Summary of significant 
accounting policies (cont’d)

p) Lease arrangements (cont’d)

the lower of its fair value and the 
present value of the minimum 
lease payments. Subsequent to 
initial recognition, the asset is 
accounted for in accordance with 
the accounting policy applicable 
to that asset. Leases other than 
finance leases are operating leases 
and where LandCorp is the lessee 
in an operating lease arrangement, 
leased assets are not recognised 
on the balance sheet.

LandCorp is a lessor in a number 
of operating leases of industrial, 
grazing and residential property.  
These assets are recognised on 
the balance sheet as items of 
property plant and equipment 
or inventory. Refer to note 1(f) 
and note 1(m) for accounting 
treatment.

q) Lease payments

LandCorp is a lessee in a number 
of operating leases. Payments 
made under operating leases are 
recognised in profit or loss on a 
straight-line basis over the term of 
the lease. Lease incentives received 
are recognised as an integral part 
of the total lease expense, over the 
term of the lease.

r) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when 
LandCorp has a present obligation 
(legal or constructive) as a result 
of a past event, and it is probable 
that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits 
will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of 
the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the 
present value of management’s 
best estimate of the expenditure 
required to settle the present 

obligation at the balance sheet 
date. If the effect of the time value 
of money is material, provisions 
are determined by discounting 
the expected future cash flows 
at a pre-tax rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the 
time value of money and, where 
appropriate, the risks specific to 
the liability. The increase in the 
provision due to the passage 
of time is recognised as a 
finance cost. 

When some or all of the economic 
benefits required to settle a 
provision are expected to be 
recovered from a third party, the 
receivable is recognised as an 
asset if it is virtually certain that 
recovery will be received and the 
amount of the receivable can be 
measured reliably.

(i) Onerous Contracts

Present obligations arising under 
onerous contracts are recognised 
and measured as a provision.  An 
onerous contract is considered 
to exist where LandCorp has 
a contract under which the 
unavoidable costs of meeting the 
obligations under the contract 
exceed the economic benefits 
expected to be received under it.

s) Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified 
into the following specified 
categories: financial assets at 
fair value through profit or loss, 
held-to-maturity investments, 
available-for-sale financial assets 
and loans and receivables.  The 
classification depends on the 
nature and purpose of the 
financial assets and is determined 
at the time of initial recognition.  
All regular way purchases or sales 
of financial assets are recognised 
and derecognised on a trade date 
basis.  Regular way purchases 
or sales are purchases or sales 
of financial assets that require 

delivery of assets within the time 
frame established by regulation or 
convention in the marketplace. 

(i) Effective interest method

The effective interest method 
is a method of calculating 
the amortised cost of a debt 
instrument and of allocating 
interest income over the relevant 
period.  The effective interest 
rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash 
receipts (including all fees on 
points paid or received that form 
an integral part of the effective 
interest rate, transaction costs 
and other premiums or discounts) 
through the expected life of 
the debt instrument, or (where 
appropriate) a shorter period, to 
the net carrying amount on initial 
recognition.

Income is recognised on an 
effective interest basis for debt 
instruments other than those 
financial assets classified as at fair 
value through profit or loss.

(ii) Held-to-maturity investments 

Commercial bills and term 
deposits with fixed or 
determinable payments and fixed 
maturity dates that LandCorp 
has the positive intent and ability 
to hold to maturity are classified 
as held-to-maturity investments. 
Held-to-maturity investments are 
measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method less 
any impairment. 

(iii) Loans and receivables 

Trade receivables, loans, and 
other receivables that have 
fixed or determinable payments 
that are not quoted in an active 
market are classified as ‘loans and 
receivables’. Loans and receivables 
are measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest 
method, less any impairment.  
Interest income is recognised by

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  |  91



Note 1 Summary of significant 
accounting policies (cont’d)

s) Financial assets (cont’d)

applying the effective interest rate, 
except for short-term receivables 
when the effect of discounting is 
immaterial.

(iv) Derecognition of financial 
assets

LandCorp derecognises a financial 
asset only when the contractual 
rights to the cash flows from 
the asset expire, or when it 
transfers the financial asset and 
substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership of the asset 
to another party. 

If LandCorp neither transfers 
nor retains substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership 
and continues to control the 
transferred asset, LandCorp 
recognises its retained interest 
in the asset and an associated 
liability for amounts it may 
have to pay. If LandCorp retains 
substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership of a 
transferred financial asset, 
LandCorp continues to recognise 
the financial asset and also 
recognises a collateralised 
borrowing for the proceeds 
received.  On derecognition of a 
financial asset in its entirety, the 
difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the sum of 
the consideration received and 
receivable and the cumulative gain 
or loss that had been recognised 
in other comprehensive income 
and accumulated in equity is 
recognised in profit or loss.

t) Receivables

Trade receivables and other 
receivables expected to be 
received within 180 days are 
recognised at face value, less any 
impairment losses.

Trade receivables and other 
receivables expected to be 
received later than 180 days are 
measured at amortised cost, less 
any impairment losses. 

u) Impairment of assets 

(i) Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of 
LandCorp’s assets, other than 
deferred tax assets, are reviewed 
at each reporting date to 
determine whether there are any 
indicators of impairment. If any 
such indication exists then the 
asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated. For intangible assets 
that have an indefinite life or 
are not yet available for use, 
recoverable amount is estimated 
annually and whenever there is an 
indication of impairment.

An impairment loss is recognised 
if the carrying amount of an asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount.  
Impairment losses are recognised 
in profit or loss.  The recoverable 
amount of an asset is the greater 
of its value in use and its fair value 
less costs to sell.  In assessing the 
value in use, the estimated future 
cash flows are discounted to their 
present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset.

Impairment losses recognised in 
prior periods are assessed at each 
reporting date for any indications 
that a loss has decreased or no 
longer exists.  An impairment 
loss is reversed if there has been 
a change in the estimates used 
to determine the recoverable 
amount.  An impairment loss is 
reversed only to the extent that 
the asset’s carrying amount does 
not exceed the amount that 
would have been determined, net 
of depreciation or amortisation, 
had no impairment loss been 
recognised in prior periods.

(ii) Financial assets

Financial assets, other than those 
at fair value through profit or loss, 
are assessed for indicators of 
impairment at each balance sheet 
date. Financial assets are impaired 
where there is objective evidence 
that as a result of one or more 
events that occurred after the 
initial recognition of the financial 
asset the estimated future cash 
flows of the investment have been 
impacted. For financial assets 
carried at amortised cost, the 
amount of the impairment is the 
difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present 
value of estimated future cash 
flows, discounted at the original 
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the 
financial asset is reduced by the 
impairment loss directly for all 
financial assets with the exception 
of trade receivables where the 
carrying amount is reduced 
through the use of an allowance 
account. When a trade receivable 
is uncollectible, it is written off 
against the allowance account.  
Subsequent recoveries of amounts 
previously written off are credited 
against the allowance account.  
Changes in the carrying amount 
of the allowance account are 
recognised in profit or loss.

v) Revenue recognition

Revenue from land sales is 
recognised when all the following 
conditions are satisfied:

• LandCorp has transferred to 
the buyer the significant risks 
and rewards of ownership of 
the land;

• LandCorp retains neither 
the continuing managerial 
involvement to the degree 
usually associated with 
ownership nor effective control 
over the land;
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Note 1 Summary of significant 
accounting policies (cont’d)

v) Revenue recognition (cont’d)

• the amount of revenue can be 
reliably measured;

• it is probable that the 
economic benefits associated 
with the transaction will flow 
to LandCorp; and 

• the costs incurred or to be 
incurred in respect of the 
transaction can be measured 
reliably.

Rent revenue from operating 
leases is recognised as income 
on a straight line basis over the 
rental term.  

Royalty revenue is recognised on 
an accruals basis in accordance 
with the substance of the 
relevant agreement.

Interest revenue is recognised on 
a time proportionate basis that 
takes into account the effective 
yield on the principal sum of the 
financial asset.

Project management revenue 
is recognised in profit or loss 
in proportion to the stage of 
completion of the transaction 
at the reporting date. The stage 
of completion is assessed by 
reference to surveys of work 
performed. 

Services received free of charge 
are recognised as revenue when 
and only when a fair value can 
be reliably determined and 
the services would have been 
purchased if they had not been 
donated. Consequently, use of 
those resources is recognised as 
an expense.

Unearned revenue comprises 
prepaid rental income, upfront 
capital lease payments 
and partnering agreement 
participation fees received but not 
yet earned. Unearned revenue is 

released to income as and when 
the services for which it was paid 
are delivered. 

w) Operating subsidy project 
funding

LandCorp receives operating 
subsidies funding for certain 
projects from the Department of 
Treasury and other Government 
agencies as a contribution 
towards either holding costs, land 
acquisitions or land development 
and associated costs. This 
funding is required to ensure 
LandCorp achieves its hurdle rate 
of return on these projects and 
is recognised as revenue in the 
statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income 
when received by LandCorp. 

x) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand 
and demand deposits.  Cash 
equivalents are highly liquid 
investments with short periods 
to maturity which is readily 
convertible to cash and are 
subject to an insignificant risk 
of changes in value, net of 
outstanding bank overdrafts.

y) Investments

LandCorp has investments 
in commercial bills and term 
deposits which are recognised 
and derecognised on trade date 
where the purchase or sale of an 
investment is under a contract 
whose terms require delivery 
of the investment within the 
timeframe established by the 
market concerned, and are initially 
measured at fair value, net of 
transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, 
investments in commercial bills 
and term deposits are recorded at 
amortised cost using the effective 
interest method less impairment, 
with revenue recognised on an 
effective yield basis.

z)  Rounding

All amounts in the financial report 
have been rounded to the nearest 
thousand dollars unless otherwise 
indicated.

aa) Comparative amounts

When the presentation or 
classification of items in the 
financial report is amended, 
comparative amounts 
are reclassified unless the 
reclassification is impracticable.  
When comparative amounts are 
reclassified, LandCorp discloses:

• the nature of the classification;

• the amount of each item 
or class of items that is 
reclassified; and 

• the reason for the 
reclassification.

ab) Change in accounting policy

LandCorp made no changes to 
its accounting policies during the 
year.
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 30 June 2015

2015 2014

$'000 $'000

Note 2 Profit before income tax
Profit before income tax includes the following items of 
revenue and expense

a) Revenue
Operating revenue
Land sales  342,530  362,435 
Grants to fund operating subsidy projects  77,464  59,415 
Rent revenue  53,438  49,631 
Expenses recovery  2,481  11,541 
Grants to fund operating subsidy projects - holding costs  26,175  27,434 
Royalties  655  668 
Project management revenue  3,038  3,764 
Total operating revenue  505,781  514,888 

Other revenue
Joint venture share of profits  -  385 
Participation fees  2,644  10,151 
Other  12,125  14,503 
Total other revenue  14,769  25,039 
Non-operating revenue
Interest revenue  1,643  2,146 
Total non-operating revenue  1,643  2,146 

Total other revenue  16,412  27,185 

b) Expenses from ordinary activities
Operating costs    
Cost of sales  (223,670)   (275,090)
Operating subsidy project expenditure  (85,863)   (61,673)
Share of joint venture losses  -   (96)
Property management expenses  (42,850)   (32,873)
Total operating costs  (352,383)   (369,732)

Other expenses from operating activities
Administration expenses  (5,047)   (4,834)
Accommodation expenses  (2,238)   (2,055)
Land study expenses  (922)   (45)
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment  (14)   (45)
Depreciation and amortisation  (14,089)   (14,785)
Other expenses  11   (9)
Total other expenses from ordinary activities  (22,299)   (21,773)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  |  94



2015 2014

$'000 $'000

Note 3 Income tax expense

Current tax expense

Current period  15,221  18,655 

 15,221  18,655 

Deferred tax expense

Origination and reversal of temporary differences  2,050  (2,335)

 2,050  (2,335)

Income tax expense from continuing operations  17,271  16,320 

Total income tax expense  17,271  16,320

Numerical reconciliation between tax expense and pre-tax 
accounting profit

Total comprehensive income for the period  40,291  38,093 

Total income tax expense  17,271  16,320 

Profit excluding income tax  57,562  54,413 

Income tax using LandCorps domestic rate of 30% (2014: 30%)  17,269  16,323 

Non-deductible expenses  2  2 

Tax incentives  -  (5)

Total income tax expense  17,271  16,320 
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2015 2014

$'000 $'000

Note 4 Receivables

Current

Trade receivables  22,937  76,675 

Less allowance for doubtful debts  (103)  (218)

 22,834  76,457 

GST receivable  5,171  9,257 

Total current receivables  28,005  85,714 

Non-current

Trade receivables  19,817  24,871 

Refer to note  19 for discussion of financial risks associated with receivables.

Note 5 Inventories

Current - land under development and developed land

at cost  424,200  372,560 

at net realisable value  20,017  12,563 

Total current inventories  444,217  385,123 

Non-current - undeveloped land

at cost  296,775  311,640 

at net realisable value  11,271  11,271 

Total non-current inventories  308,046  322,911 

Land held for sale comprises

Cost of acquisition  365,482  361,049 

Development costs  386,781  346,985 

Total inventories  752,263  708,034 

For land in the Perth metropolitan area and the Bunbury region, the most recent valuations of undeveloped land held 
for sale, which have not been recognised in the financial statements, were valuations at 1 January 2015 as provided by 
The Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services).  For all other undeveloped land the values were 
assessed internally, with reference to 2014 valuations, 2015 unimproved valuations, and current market data. The valuations 
of developed land held for sale, which have not been recognised in the financial statements, have been determined 
taking into account advice from independent valuers and real estate agents in accordance with LandCorp’s list price 
and valuation policies and under relevant delegated authorities. List prices are generally reviewed at least twice a year 
(depending on the type of land) except during static market conditions whereby prices may be reviewed less frequently 
under the instruction of a relevant delegated authority.

Market value of developed land and undeveloped land held at 30 June 2015 amounted to $2,032,845,000 (2014: 
$2,212,693,000).

At 30 June 2015 the write-down of inventories to net realiseable value amounted to $3,622,000 (2014: $3,745,000). There 
were no reversal of write-downs. The write-downs are included in cost of sales.
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2015 2014

$'000 $'000

Note 6 Other financial assets

Current

Commercial bills/ investments (note 19(a))  29,027  15,000 
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Note 7 Property, plant and equipment

Capital 
works in 
progress

$’000

Freehold 
land

$'000
Buildings

$'000

Infra-
structure

$’000
Equipment

$’000
Total

$’000

Cost or deemed cost

Balance at 30 June 2013  (44)  75,796  27,615  26,528  217,288  347,183 

Additions  -  7,919  -  -  410  8,329 

Cost revisions  44  209  -  521  480  1,254 

Reclassification  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Disposals  -  (9,233)  -  142  (690)  (9,781)

Balance at 30 June 2014  -  74,691  27,615  27,191  217,488  346,985 

Additions  -  9,882  -  -  234  10,116 

Cost revisions  -  225  -  -  1,178  1,403 

Reclassification  -  -  -  -  (663)  (663)

Disposals  -  -  (3)  -  (554)  (557)

Balance at 30 June 2015  -  84,798  27,612  27,191  217,683  357,284 

Accumulated depreciation            

Balance at 30 June 2013  (9,578)  (8,728)  (31,677)  (49,983)

Disposals  -  -  642  642 

Reclassification  -  -  -  - 

Depreciation expense  (999)  (1,188)  (9,186)  (11,373)

Balance at 30 June 2014  (10,577)  (9,916)  (40,221)  (60,714)

Disposals  3  -  540  543 

Reclassification  -  -  -  - 

Depreciation expense  (999)  (1,188)  (8,531)  (10,718)

Balance at 30 June 2015  (11,573)  (11,104)  (48,212)  (70,889)

Carrying amounts

at 30 June 2014  -  74,691  17,038  17,275  177,267  286,271 

at 30 June 2015  -  84,798  16,039  16,087  169,471  286,395 

LandCorp obtained valuations from Valuation Services to support the carrying value of freehold land included in property, 
plant and equipment based on their estimated market value at 1 January 2015. Market value of freehold land at 30 June 
2015 was $440,084,000 (2014: $352,696,000).

Non-Current



Note 8 Intangible assets

Non-current

Computer 
software

$’000

Cost

Balance at 30 June 2013  10,772 

Additions  20 

Asset improvements  2,190 

Balance at 30 June 2014  12,982 

Additions  663 

Cost revisions  336 

Disposals  (2)

Balance at 30 June 2015  13,979 

Accumulated amortisation

Balance at 30 June 2013  (3,331)

Depreciation expense  (3,370)

Balance at 30 June 2014  (6,701)

Depreciation expense  (3,371)

Balance at 30 June 2015  (10,072)

Carrying amounts

at 30 June 2014  6,281 

at 30 June 2015  3,907 
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2015 2014

$'000 $'000

Note 9 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Non-current

Deferred tax asset   25,683   27,480 

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect 
of the following items:

Deductible temporary differences  10,823  10,823 

 10,823  10,823 

The deductible temporary differences do not expire under current tax legislation. Deferred tax assets have not been 
recognised in respect of these items because they will only become available in the event that the underlying assets are 
held until utilisation of all capital works deductions.

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities and movement in temporary differences during the year   
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

2015 
Temporary differences

Opening 
balance

$'000

Recognised 
in profit  

or loss
$'000

Under 
(over) 

provision in 
prior year

$’000

Recognised 
directly in 

equity
$’000

Closing 
balance

$’000

Inventories  20,650  (1,121)  -  -  19,529 

Property, plant and equipment  6,026  (629)  -  -  5,397 

Accrued expenses  40  1  -  -  41 

Provision for superannuation  2  -  -  -  2 

Provision for annual leave  644  96  -  -  740 

Provision for long service leave  1,448  (53)  -  -  1,395 

Provision for doubtful debts  65  (35)  -  -  30 

Joint venture income recognition  931  (793)  (138)  -  - 

Provision for fringe benefit tax  13  (9)  -  -  4 

Provision for future development obligation  4,596  117  -  -  4,713 

Accrued interest income  (33)  33  -  -  - 

Recognition of long leases  5,614  (115)  -  -  5,499 

Income received in advance  (11,048)  2,224  -  -  (8,824)

Joint venture development costs  (1,468)  (1,375)  -  -  (2,843)

 27,480  (1,659)  (138)  -  25,683 
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Note 9 Deferred tax assets and liabilities (cont’d)       

2014 
Temporary differences

Opening 
balance

$'000

Recognised 
in profit  

or loss
$'000

Under 
(over) 

provision in 
prior year

$’000

Recognised 
directly in 

equity
$’000

Closing 
balance

$’000

Inventories  23,688  (3,038)  -  -  20,650 

Property, plant and equipment  (159)  1,072  5,113  -  6,026 

Accrued expenses  39  1  -  -  40 

Provision for superannuation  264  (262)  -  -  2 

Provision for annual leave  688  (44)  -  -  644 

Provision for long service leave  1,505  (57)  -  -  1,448 

Provision for doubtful debts  65  -  -  -  65 

Joint venture income recognition  6,588  (5,657)  -  -  931 

Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax  -  13  -  -  13 

Provision for future development obligation  3,916  680  -  -  4,596 

Accrued interest income  (12)  (21)  -  -  (33)

Recognition of long leases  1,931  3,683  -  -  5,614 

Income received in advance  (11,771)  368  355  -  (11,048)

Joint venture development costs  (1,596)  128  -  -  (1,468)

 25,146  (3,134)  5,468  -  27,480 

Movement in unrecognised deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year

Balance 
1 July 13

$'000
Recognised

$'000

Balance 
1 July 14

$’000
Recognised

$’000 $’000

Deductible temporary differences  10,823  -   10,823  -   10,823 
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Balance
30 June 15



2015 2014

$'000 $'000

Note 10 Other assets

Current

Deposit bonds  1,251  942 

Deposits for land acquisitions  38,299  16,270 

Prepayments  3,160  17,400 

Total current other assets  42,710  34,612

Non-current

Deposits for land acquisitions   30,488   26,604 

Note 11 Payables

Current

Trade payables  22,616  18,196 

Accrued expenses  66,725  44,340 

GST payable  4,769  6,495 

Total current payables  94,110  69,031 

Note 12 Tax liabilities

Current

Income tax payable   9,422   8,317 
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2015 2014

$'000 $'000

Note 13 Provisions

Current

Employee benefits (note 17(a))  5,201  5,324 

Total current provisions  5,201  5,324 

Non-current

Employee benefits (note 17(a))  1,915  1,656

Defined benefit superannuation plan (note 17(b))  6    6   

Total non-current provisions  1,921  1,662 

Note 14 Other liabilities

Current

Deposits (i)  2,371  21,755 

Unearned revenue  3,533  6,070 

Total current other liabilities  5,904  27,825 

Non-current

Unearned revenue  17,947  18,329 

Other  15,000  15,000 

 32,947  33,329 

(i) Deposits include deposits received on sale of land.

Note 15 Equity

Contributed equity

Opening balance:

Capital contributed on formation  113,957  113,957 

Capital contributed by State Government  271,465  271,465 

 385,422  385,422 

Capital contributed by State Government during the 
year (i)

 10,120  -   

Total contributed equity  395,542  385,422 

(i) Capital contributed by State Government during the year

Department of Treasury funding  9,120  -   

Royalties for Regions funding  1,000 -   

Total capital contributed by State Government during the year 10,120 -

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  |  102



2015 2014

$'000 $'000

Note 16 Notes to the statement of cash flows

(a) Reconciliation of cash

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand and in banks, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash flows is 
reconciled to the related items in the statement of financial position as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents  4,012   19,885 

(b) Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the period  40,291  38,093 

Adjustments for:

Sale of non-current assets (profit) loss  -    44 

Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets  14,089  14,743 

Income tax expense  17,272  16,320 

 71,651  69,200 

Assets (increase)/ decrease

Receivables  62,763   (393)

Inventories   (44,229)  110,314 

Investments in joint ventures  -    5,418 

Other assets   (11,982)  15,987 

Liabilities increase/ (decrease)

Payables  25,079   (7,566)

Provisions  136   (91,839)

Other liabilities   (22,849)  13,286 

Cash generated from operating activities  80,569  114,407 

Net income tax paid   (14,367)   (20,431)

Net cash from operating activities  66,202  93,976 

(c) Financing facilities

Unsecured bank overdraft facility, reviewed annually and payable at call:

Amount used  -    -   

Amount unused  2,000  2,000 

 2,000  2,000 

Secured loan facilities with Western Australian Treasury 
Corporation (WATC)

Amount used  125,522  159,953

Amount unused  210,478  140,047 

 336,000  300,000 
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Note 17 Employee benefits

(a) The aggregate employee entitlement liability (other than under the defined benefit superannuation plan) recognised 
and included in the financial statements is as follows:

Current provision for employee benefits (note 13)   5,201   5,324 

Non-current provision for employee benefits (note 13)   1,915   1,656 

  7,116   6,980 

(b) Defined benefit superannuation plan

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial assumptions were as follows:

2015 2014
% %

Discount rate 2.74 3.69

Expected salary increase rate 4.00 5.00

Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as 
follows:

2015 2014

$'000 $'000
Opening defined benefit obligation  6  6 

Closing defined benefit obligation  6  6 

Historical information

(Gold State Super)

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

2013
$'000

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Present value of defined benefit obligation  6  6  6  886  747 

Fair value of scheme assets  -  -  -  -  - 

(Surplus)/deficit in scheme  6  6  6  886  747 

Experience adjustments (gain)/loss -  -  -  (39)  (40)  - 

scheme liabilities

The experience adjustment for Scheme liabilities represents the actuarial loss (gain) due to a change in the liabilities 
arising from the Scheme’s experience (eg membership movements, unit entitlements) and excludes the effect of the 
changes in assumptions (eg movements in the bond rate and changes in pensioner mortality assumptions).

Through the State Budget, Government has approved LandCorp’s borrowing projections based on cash flow estimates 
and the limits are as follows:

Borrowing limit   125,522   159,953 

"Intra-year" peak borrowings   336,000   253,100 

Note 16 Notes to the statement of cash flows (cont’d)

2015
(Gold State Super) $'000

Expected employer contributions -
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Note 18 Commitments

(a) Capital commitments expenditure
Development of land  199,395  155,039 
Community service obligation (project funding received in advance)  29,344  36,808 

 228,739  191,847 

(b) Operating lease commitments
Operating lease commitments are disclosed in note 24(a)

Note 19 Financial risk management

(a) Financial risk management

LandCorp has exposure to the following risks from their use of financial instruments:
- credit risk       
- liquidity risk       
- market risk        

This note presents information about LandCorp’s exposure to each of the above risks, their objectives, policies and 
processes for measuring and managing risk, and the management of capital.     

The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework. The Board 
has established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring risk management 
policies. The committee reports regularly to the Board on its activities.      

Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by LandCorp, to set appropriate risk 
limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed 
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and LandCorp’s activities. LandCorp, through their training and 
management standards and procedures, aim to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all 
employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with LandCorp’s risk management policies and 
procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by LandCorp. 
The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc 
reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee. 

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to LandCorp if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractural obligations, and arises principally from LandCorp’s receivables from customers and investments.  

Exposure to credit risk       

The carrying amount of LandCorp’s financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. LandCorp’s maximum 
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Carrying amount

2015 2014
$'000 $'000

Held-to-maturity and/or cash investments  29,027  15,000 
Loans and receivables  42,651  101,328 
Cash and cash equivalents  4,012  19,885 

 75,691  136,213 
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Note 19 Financial risk management (cont’d)

Investments

LandCorp limits its exposure to credit risk by only investing in liquid securities and only with counterparties that 
have a credit rating of AA from Standard & Poor’s. Given these high credit ratings, management does not expect any 
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

Trade and other receivables

LandCorp’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the nature of each type of debtor and a risk management 
approach is taken. Approximately 37% (2014: 2%) comprises debt from other Government agencies to be paid over time 
and is considered to be low risk.

It should be noted that due to the nature of LandCorp’s business, the vast majority of LandCorp’s revenue is received and 
recognised at the time of settlement of the sale of land, hence debtors make up a small proportion of LandCorp’s overall 
customer base.

New non-Government debtors are analysed individually for creditworthiness before LandCorp’s standard payment and 
delivery terms and conditions are offered.        

Given the one-off nature of land sales with LandCorp, less than 10% (2014: less than 10%) of LandCorp’s customers have 
transacted with LandCorp previously, and losses have occurred infrequently. In monitoring debtor credit risk, debtors are 
grouped according to their credit characteristics; whether they are a Government or non-Government debtor. Debtors that 
are graded as higher risk are monitored for late payment and may be subject to legal action.  

LandCorp has established an allowance for impairment that represents their estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade 
and other receivables. The allowance is a specific loss component that relates to individual exposures. 

LandCorp’s maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by geographic region was:

    Carrying amount

2015 2014
$'000 $'000

Australia  42,754  101,546 

Carrying amount

2015 2014
$'000 $'000

Government debtors   12,590   15,260  
Non-Government debtors  30,164  86,286 

LandCorp’s maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by type of debtor was:
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Note 19 Financial risk management (cont’d)

Impairment losses       

LandCorp’s receivables past due amount to $766,000 (2014: $769,000). The aging of LandCorp’s trade receivables at 
the reporting date was:

Trade receivables Gross Impairment

2015 2014 2015 2014
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Not past due  41,988  100,777  -    -   
Past due 1-30 days  291  413  -    -   
Past due 31-60 days  108  118  -    -   
Past due 61-90 days  54  20  -    -   
Past due 91-180 days  155  -    -    -   
Past due more than 181 days  158  218  103  218 

 42,754  101,546  103  218 

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:

2015 2014
$'000 $'000

Balance at 1 July  218  218 
Movement  (115)    -   
Balance 30 June  103  218 
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Note 19 Financial risk management (cont’d)

Impairment losses (cont’d)

LandCorp believes no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of trade receivables not past due or past due by up 
to 60 days. LandCorp does make an impairment allowance for all receivables greater than 181 days. The debt owed by 
Exmouth Marina Holdings Pty Ltd was written off during the year and the allowance for impairment was reversed.

The allowance accounts in respect of trade receivables and held-to-maturity investments are used to record impairment 
losses unless LandCorp is satisfied that no recovery of the amount owing is possible; at that point the amount is 
considered irrecoverable and is written off against the financial asset directly. At 30 June 2015 LandCorp does not have 
any collective impairments on its trade receivables or its held-to-maturity investments (2014: nil).

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that LandCorp will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. LandCorp’s 
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its 
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage 
to LandCorp’s reputation. 

LandCorp uses market value to cost its land, which assists it in monitoring cash flow requirements and optimising its cash 
return on investments. Typically LandCorp ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational 
expenses for a period of 30 days, including the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of 
extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters. In addition, LandCorp maintains the 
following lines of credit:   

-  $2 million bank overdraft facility that is unsecured. Interest would be payable at the bank’s published Corporate 
Overdraft Reference Rate less 100 basis points.       

-  $336 million (2014: $300 million) provided by WA Treasury Corporation (WATC) that can be drawn down to meet short 
and long-term financing needs. The facility has a flexible maturity that is renewable and repayable at the option of 
LandCorp. Interest is calculated on a variable basis and is payable at the WATC lending rate for this structure on the day 
the funds are advanced plus or minus 100 basis points.

-   Guarantees established in favour of Commonwealth Bank of Australia for guarantees issued to various Government 
entities for satisfactory contract performance, secured by underlying land assets, amounting to $20 million (2014 - $20 
million).

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments and excluding the 
impact of netting agreements: 

2015

Weighted 
average 

effective 
interest rate

%

Carrying 
amount

$'000

Contractual 
cash flows

$’000

6 months or 
less

$’000
6-12 months

$’000

More than 1 
year

$’000

Trade and other payables  94,110  (94,110)  (91,956)  (998)  (1,156)

WATC loan 2.97%  125,522  (125,522)  (125,522)  -  - 

Bank overdraft  -  -  -  -  - 

 219,632  (219,632)  (217,478)  (998)  (1,156)

2014

Trade and other payables  69,031  (69,031)  (67,361)  (651)  (1,019)

WATC loan 3.47%  159,953  (159,953)  (159,953)  -  - 

Bank overdraft  -  -  -  -  - 

 228,984  (228,984)  (227,314)  (651)  (1,019)
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Note 19 Financial risk management  (cont’d)

(d) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect 
LandCorp’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to 
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

LandCorp currently has no derivative arrangements.  

Currency risk       

LandCorp’s exposure to currency risk is immaterial.

LandCorp holds no foreign currency loans or other monetary assets and liabilities and incurs no foreign currency 
interest. 

Interest rate risk       

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of LandCorp’s interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities was: 

$’000 2015 2014

Variable rate instruments
Financial assets   33,039   34,885  
Financial liabilities (125,522) (159,953)

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments:       

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased/ (decreased) equity and profit or 
loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant. The analysis is performed 
on the same basis for 2014.        

Profit or Loss

2015 100 bp 100 bp

$'000 increase decrease

Financial assets   330   (330)
Financial liabilities (1,255) 1,255

2014
$'000

Financial assets  349   (349)  
Financial liabilities (1,600) (1,600)
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Note 19 Financial risk management  (cont’d)

Fair values

Fair values versus carrying amounts      

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the balance sheet, are as 
follows:

30 June 2015 30 June 2014

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value

Other financial assets  29,027  29,027  15,000  15,000 

Loans and receivables  42,651  42,651   101,328  101,328 

Cash and cash equivalents  4,012  4,012  19,885  19,885 

Trade and other payables  (94,110)  (94,110)  (69,031)  (69,031)

WATC loan  (125,522)  (125,522)  (159,953)  (159,953)

 (143,941)  (143,941)  (92,771)  (92,771)

Capital Management     

The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain shareholder, creditor and market confidence 
and to sustain the future development of the business.

The Board’s policy is referred to in Section 19 of the Western Australian Land Authority Act 1992.

Under the Western Australian Land Authority Act 1992, LandCorp has agreed a dividend policy with its shareholder, the 
State Government, around a set formula. A balance is retained as a source of capital base for ongoing activities.

There were no changes to LandCorp’s approach to capital management during the year. 

LandCorp is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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Note 20 Land sales contracts

Unsettled sales contracts (i)   72,144   176,739 

(i) Unsettled sales contracts have not been included in revenue since neither title nor possession has been transferred. 
This treatment is in accordance with the Accounting Policy explained in note 1(v).

Note 22 Contingent liabilities

The directors are of the opinion that LandCorp has no contingent liabilities.

Note 21 Remuneration of auditors

Audit of the financial report  138   134 

Note 23 Dividends

Recognised amounts

Normal dividend  17,192   16,970 

Special dividends:

- AMC Common User Facility  13,290  13,290 

- 5% Efficiency saving  1,049  1,101 

- Additional efficiency saving  911  585 

 32,442  31,946 

In the August 2014 Board meeting, the Board approved to recommend to the Minister a final dividend for 2014/15 of 
$32,442,000. Total dividends paid in 2015: $32,442,000 (2014: $31,946,000) in respect of LandCorp’s operations.
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Note 24 Leasing arrangements

(a) Operating lease commitments

LandCorp has its office premises and its motor vehicle fleet under non-cancellable operating leases.  Total commitments 
for future lease payments which have not been provided for in the accounts are as follows:

No later than 1 year  2,605  1,744 

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  10,766  7,011 

Later than 5 years  12,167  11,364 

 25,538  20,119 

(b) Operating lease receivables 

LandCorp holds certain land and buildings for strategic purposes only.  Such holdings are rentable properties and are 
treated as operating lease receivables. Total future lease receivables are as follows:

No later than 1 year  52,721  52,476 

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  228,195  248,080 

Later than 5 years  234,399  224,277 

 515,315  524,833 

Leases are negotiated in terms between 2 to 5 years with the exception of certain contracts that last up to 50 years.  
Rental rates are subject to future adjustments based on the terms of the lease arrangements.  Outstanding operating 
leases are based on existing rates and do not include the extension periods under option.

Note 25 - Subsequent events

There has not been any matter or circumstance occurring subsequent to the end of the financial year that has significantly 
affected or may significantly affect LandCorp’s operations, the results of those operations, or LandCorp’s state of affairs in 
future financial years.
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